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Chairperson’s introduction

I am pleazed to introduce the Marseyside
Recycling and Waste Authority's Statement of
Accounts for 20016-17. The Authority continues to
place an important emphasis on the wse of waste
a5 a resource and this is refiected in the outward
facing name of the Authority and our priorities,

Az Members of the Authority my colleagues and |
have a duty to ensure the effectve use of financial
and staffing resources to deliver services fo
Merseyside residents, The Authority's turnover of
E73.3M is managed by a staff of 30 and we repart
to the public on the exercise of our responsitilities
annually through the staterment of accounts,

The accounts show people across Merseyside how
much our services have cost and how funding for
thase services has been provided. They help to
providie reassurance to the people of Merseyside
about the care we take over the public funds that
have been placed at our disposal by the public
through the Lewy.

Cnee agaln, for the seventh year, the Levy in 2016-
17 didf not lncreage i averall terms. The
constiteent District Councils continus to face
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significant fimancial pressure and the Authority
sought to respond by using its reserves to mitigate
the impact of s costs through the lewy, This
approach has been successful for 3 number of
years but may not be possible in future'as the gap
between spending and Income s becoming
unsustainabie,

During 2016-17 the Authosity has started to move
from mainly disposing of waste via tandfill tites 1o
disposing of wastie through the new Energy from
Wazte plant managed by Merseyside Energy
Recovery Lid. Commissioning i taking longsr than
expected but the plant will be fully operational in
the summer of 2017; it will provide a long term
economic and ecolagically beneficial disposal
sofution for Maerseyside

At the same time the Auothority has continued to
winrk with Veolia ES who provide a metwork of
Household Waste Recydling Centres; transfar
stanions for waste and bwo Materjals Recyding
Facilities which separate and sort dry recycled
wasie collected by Districts from househalds,

The Authority continues to moniter and manage a
number of closad landfill sifes across Merseyvside,

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

meeting our environmental labilities and ensuring
they do not poflute the local environment.

The Authority promotes the need to use less; re-
use-and recycle more and [0 raise waste up the
waste hierarchy through its Community Fund and
the range of events and Education It ks Invalve in

Effective financial management has been key to
ensuring the Autharity is able to utilise balances to
offset future financial pressures. The Authority has
planned to use and has used its balances (0 offset
cost pressures that would otherwise impact on the
tevy for Districts. At the same time the Authority
contimues to review all of its costs and warks to
mitigate the Impact of the Levy on the District
Councils, The Autharity aims to be an efficient and
low spending organisation which s sustained
through = sound financial function.

Chasrperson of the Authority

Page | 3



Background: the Authority and its Functions

Pderseyside Recycling and Waste Authority
[MAWA, which is the public facing name of the
statutory joink waste Authority] came into belng
on 1" April 1986 on the demise of the former
Metropolitan County of Merseyside. The statutony
duty and powers over waste dizposal were
altocated to the new Waste DRsposal Authority
which was created for the purpose of waste
dispasal.

The arrangements mean that MAWA is a focal
duthority that meets to take decisions on how it
fulfils its responsibilities. MRWA is made up of
Councilbars (the Members) appointed o the
Authority by gach of the constituent authorigies in
Merseyside. The number of Members appointed
by @ach Council 15 set by statute. The Authority 5
made up of nine Members appointad by the
constituent authoritles as follows: Liverpool 3,
Sefton 2, Wirral 2, Knowsley 1, 5t Helens 1. These
appoinied Members it as the local authority on a
statutary basis

MRW A, has ali the legal duties and powers to
dispose of Merseyside's waste. The constituent

o k. Frtvriome e Wil e rbamet i

duthorities have no such disposal powers, but are
stalutory waste collection authorities and have &
disty to deliver contralled waste to MRAWA for
disposal.

The functions, role, duties and powers of MREWA
are set out In law and can only be amended by
changes in statute: This kas takan plagein the past,
under the terms of tha Environmantal protection
Act 1990 when the role of the Authority was
imended.

Under the Environmental Protection Act 1990,
MAWA is primarily responsible for:-

o] making arrangements for the disposal of waste
collected by its constituent Waste Collection
Authoritles {namely Knowsley MBC Liverpoal £,
5t Hefens MBC, Sefton MBC and Wirral MBC,

b} providing and making arrangements (with
contractors) for the provision and operation of
Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC) for
use by members of the public-and the removal of
wastes deposited at those sites;
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t) making arrangements for the recycling and
compaosting of waste and meeting |ts statutory
performance standards;

d) discretlonary payment of ‘recycling credits’ to
third parties; and

e) aftercare of seven former landfill sites in the
ownership, ar under the contral of, MRWA,

The Environmental Protection Act 1990 also gives
MRWA, ceriain powers for the purpose of
discharging its duties. In relation to controlled
wiaste, this includes a power to ‘ghve directions to
the waste collection authorities within it ares as
[0 the perdons to whom and places at which such
wasti is 1o be delivered.”

There are various other duties and powers granted
to MEWA including powers (o minimise the
generation of controfled waste | househald,
cormmerchil and industrial) under the Waste
Mintmisation Act 1938; and a duty to apply the
Waste Hierarchy under the Waste (England and
Waies| Regulations 2011 and a3 amended in the
Wasle {England and Wales) [Armendment)
Regulations 2012
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MEW A is =stablished by statube and collects its
levy by statute, neither of these is a woluntary
arrangement and MRAWA callects manies from the
constituent Merseyside councils to meet all its
fiabilities, This statutory right to Levy a charge on
the District Councils comes from the lalnt Waste
Cisposzl Authorities [Levies) {England) Regulations
2006, 51 2006/248 and from the Envircnment
Agency (Levies] [England and Wales| Regulations
2011 51 20117696, The effect of this is that the Lewy
Is a statutory charge on the Distriet Couneils that
they have no choice over, &5 the Councils are also
bound by statute, they are reguired to pay the
Lewy and have no power or discration not to pay.
Any Councif that failed to respond to the demand
for the levy would be in breach of its own statutory
duties

MEW A delivers its principal services through &
number of waste contracts, The Waste
tanagement and Recycling Contract was let In
2009 and iz the primary interfzce with waste
collection authorities and members of the public
through @ number of facilities including Waste
Transfer Stations, MRFs and HWRCs,

Thi majority of residual waste was landfilled under
séparate contracts, however, landflling currently
attracts an additional landfill thx charge of £84.40
per tanne (higher in 2017-18). The landfill
contracts are to be replaced by a thirty year
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Resource Recovery Contract which was letin 20132
and which commenced Commitsioning in May
2016, and despite some delays it expected to be
fully operational during summer 2017,

RRWA's main alm i o manage waste as a
resource which means providing and promoting
sustainable waste management through the waste
hierarchy where landfill |5 the least favourable
aption in anyironmental and financial terms.

MEWA acts mainly in an intelligent client
procurement and contract management role with
around 36.5% of the budget expended on
contracied, statutory and non-controllable costs,
Thire ate currently 30 staff on the Establishment
with a significant proportion of support serices
provided externally through the following service
level agreaments.

Payroll and pensions: 5t Helens MBC
& Accounts Payable: 51 Helens MBC

¥ Legal, Estates and Health and Safety: 5t Helens
hEBC

& CT; MerssyTravel
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Governance and Membership

MRWA consists of nine elected Membiers
repriesenting the five constituent district eounclis
In Merseyside. The number of Members per
dhistrict s sef by statute and is shown in brackets
agzinat each coungil below alongside the
membership danng 2016-17:

*  Enowsley {1): Councillor Graham Morgan
*  Liverpool (3): Councillors Tony
Concepcion, Liure Robertson-Collins and
Carol Sung
#  5f Helens(1): Councillar Alan Cunliffe
& Sefton {2); Councillors Kevin Cluskey and
bichael O'Brien
®  Wirral (2] Councillers Tony Morbury and
Stinee Willlams
Halton Council has defegated part of its functions
under 5ection 2E4 of the Local Government Act
2000 and the Local Authonties (Arrangement for
the Discharge of Functions) (England] Regulations
2017 1o enable its waste to be accepted under
MAWA'S contracts. A Member from Halton has
been appointed to MRWA (Councilior Stef Nelsan],
however, this Member dees not have voting rights.

MBEWA has a schedule of five meetings per year,
although special meetings may be called from time
o teme,
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Linbike some other joint boards on Merseyside,
PARWA does nat have legal powers to pay any farm
of remunaration 1o its Members

Although MAWA i not a retevant authority’ under
the Localism Act 2011, a veluntary Code of
Conduct for Members was approved In 2003 and &
currently in place.

Scrutiny Arrangemants

MEBEWA's Scheme of Delegation provides for three
tevels of decistor-making, namely Key Decislons,
Expcutive Decisions and Administrative Declsions.

MAWA does not have a Scrutiny Panel as all Key
Decisions are consadered by full Authority. The
Scheme of Delegation dops provide fior the scruting
of Executive Dacisions whers two of more
rermbers call in a proposed decision and these
serutiny itarms ate subseguently considered at fufl
Autharity maetings,

The Lecalisrn Act 2011 Schedule 2 {9FF] provides
powirs of seruliny to relevant authorities ower
pariner authority actions, ingluding those actions
of MEWA, MEWA has sent officers 1o attend a
number of scrutiny panefs over the years and
makes an annual offer to each of the Merzeyside
and Halton councils
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mManagement of the Authority

The Authonty has a Chief Executive whi is also the
Head of Paid Service, supported by an executive
MAnIgement Deam.

BARW A o5 required to appoint statutory officers,
namely p Chief Finance Officer [under Section 73 of
the Local Government Act 1985; equivalent to the
5151 Officer in ather Authorities); & Monitoring
Officer (Section 5 of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989); and a Clerk (Section 34(8) of
the Local Government Act 19855,

Thiese duties are currently undertaken by MEWA
staff. The Director of Finance role incorporates the
Chief Finance Officer dutkes. The Assistant Director
of Governance and Performance was appointed as
Clerk and Monitorng Officer, but since her
departure these posts have been filled on an
Imterimm basls by the Assistant Director Contracts
[menitaring Officer} and the Business Services
hanager {Clerk) inow appainied 1o the post of
Assistant Director with a diifferent focus)
Delegations exist to deputise in thelr absence,

The Contents of the Statements of Accounts

The Autharity's statement of accounts includes the
falfowing main staterments and notes;
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*  The Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES), which
shiows the gains and losses of the
Authority in the year;

s The Balance Sheet, which shows how
resources avallable to the Autharity are
held in terms of assets and Hakdlities;

*  The Movement in Reserves Statement
[MIRS], which shows the changes in the
Authority's financial resources aver the
year; and

*  The Cash Flow, which shows how the
mowertent in reserves has bean reflected
ir cash flows,

*  The Expenditure and Funding Analysis {a
new note to the accounts for 2016-17),
which shows how the financial position
reported to Membirs relates to the
position for Statutary Financial Reporting
following the Accounting Code of Practice
and sccounting standards.

There are also a series of notes 1o the accounts
wihich provide further information to sepport the
main statements. Each key financial disciosure also
has a comparative figure from the preceding year
1o enabie the reader to consider how the financial
performance of the Authority has changed over
the reparting period.
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Follewing on from the accounting statements for
the main Authority there is a similar set of
statements, notes and comparlsons that
incorpanite the Group Accounts for the Autharity
and it assoclated companies and interests

dudget comparison

The Authorily’s statement of accounts should be
reviewed alongside the Ouiturn Staternent, The
Cutturn 5iatement shows for the reporting period
how the Authority's planned expenditure and
income, the budget, was matched by its actual
ependilure and income, The outturn statement is
accompatied by a senes of comments and
enplanations which provide further detalls about
where expenditure and Income has moved away
from planned levels and why, & summary of the
Cotturn Statements and explanations is set out
beloiw:

Capital expenditure

The &uthority did net spend any significant
amount on 4 capital programme for 2006/17.
There wat a spend of £14k of ICT expenditure an
development of the COGNDS system, Lhis was
offset by the return of a provision that hod been
sef asde for payment of vear end costs of £36k
wehich in the end did not materialize.
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Elsewherg the Authority generated a £55k capitzal
recerpt from the sale of the In Vessel Composting
unilt which had been fully depreciated and was not
in use for the Authority's continuing activities

The Authority's significantly reduced capital
programme and the small capital receipt
generated from the sale demonstrated that the
nead for a significant Capltal Resarve had
diminished. Inconsequence the rermaining capital
reserve which had been previously used to fund
the capital programme was transferred 1o the
zeneral Fund at the vear end. Thes was possible
because the reserve had been created from
General Fund reserves in the first place. Should
there be a review of capital pregramme and
funding reguirements in the future the Authority
will need to consader the use of additional
Prugential Barrowing at that stage to cover the
capital costs

Revenue expenditure

The final Revenue Outturn shows that the
Authority spent some £ 136k less than planned
compared with the revised estimates at the end of
2016-17, which is reflected in an additional £136k
contribution to the General Fund, The General
Fund contribbution to support revenue costs in
overall terms was EB.255M rather than the
E6.391M that has been planned at revised
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estimate, Achieving an outturn that is within £136k
of the revised estimate with a turnover of over
E?3.3M should be regarded as a successful
financial outcame for the vear.

The overall outcome contains a number of
wariances from the individual revizsed estimanes
and the main differences can be analysed as
Fsllows.-
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E00D
[under)fover
spand
Establishment
The underspend hare refiects {175
savings acrass the board on the
administration of the Authoriry
and it staffing.
= Savings made include,
emplovess (E61k),
premises (E11k), franspert
[EBK], Supplios and
services (E34%), Education
{ESk), Agency (E39%) and
Support (E36k), A lower
overall cost mean the
recharge to Halton
Councll was £15k lawer
than estimated,
Contract payments
The Authorlty managed its costs on 273
the contacts well and the

gveripend i |ust aver 1.4%
campared with the overall budget
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of EBIM.

The key issue In terms of contracts
wias that the Resource Recavery
Contract (RRC] continued to be
delayed. Far the purposes of the
revised astimate exercise an
aEsUmMpTion was agread that the
RREC would commence in February,
this has not been achieved by the
contractor for a number of
operational reasons, At the same
tima the Authonty's longstanding
landfifll contract afrangements
came 1o anand. In consequence
the Authornty bas had to wark hard
ta find suitable disposal points for
Merseyside's residual waste,

While the expectation may have
been that in the Commissioning
phase, prigr o full sérvice, the RRC
with MERL would be less expansne
tham ot full service the reality has
been that a5 a consequance of the
operational issues the amount of
waste going to the MERL contract
under the ARC for commissioning
has been lower than expected. This
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has led to the need for the
Authority 1o make different
arrangements for disposal, o
raporied 1o Members in the recent
Authority mestings. Thewe have
included landfill 2nd therefora
tandfill tax. The savings that were
expected from the commissianing
arrangements have not accrued as
further imterim arrangements were
raguired.

Elsewhere, the anticipated income
fram dealing with Trade waste has
not been achieved, resulting ina
E52Ek negative performance. The
trade waste for each Council is
lewer than had been expected,
and for Liverpool where an amownt
of E325k had been anticipated this
is now being reviewed by Liverpaaol
a6 they believe their arrangements
did not amount to Trade Waste
ntil this discussion is concluded
the Authority has 1o prudenthy
gstuma the amount will not be
fartheoming,
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Clased landfill site management

The Authority has made savings on
the cost of the Clased Landiill Sites
it manages, Thers were significant
sanings in maintenance and the
costs of trade effiuent, as well asa
saving in electricity, as a result on
mnovetions in the way the
Authority manages the discharge
fram the sites.

Rent, rates & depreciation

The revised estimate of the cost of
depreciation was lower than the
actual costs of depreciation due (o
changes in asset fives, which
largety sccounts for the ovarsperd
in this area.

Recycling credits

There i5.a saving here which
reflects an overall reduction in
tonnages recycled by Distrcts for
whhich credits may be claimed
(Liverpool -£30; Wirral +£E30k;
Sefton -£88k; Knowsley <£3k; 5t

MRWA

& WEETT

{55

164

(70}

Helens  +E1Ek)
Communications

O a relatively small budget, {21)

relatively large savings acrass the
board,

Stratepy & Resources

The savings arise mainly from {157}
reductions i spending on:

Strategy updabe -L14k; Community

funding -£1k; the re-use scheme -

ES1k; the Waste Prevention

Pragrammae €93k, Savings on the

Wast= Ecosmart programme are

offset by egual and opposite

reductions in the income frem the

programme,

Service review

The Authority sef sside & sum from (11%)
Its General Fund to support the

legal ard advisor costs that may

afise from changes proposed o

services a5 & result of a seevice

fevhew. Due to the implementation

of a Strategic Review [also fundad
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from set aside General Funds] this
service review was delayed and so
there was an underspend. The
amount set aside for the Strategic
Feview was aleo underspant at the
vear end,

Other costs

The contribution in respect of {165)
technical capital accounting s

lower than estimated, but offsets

depgrecation. and impairment costs

Included above,

Interest costs

The combination of fower than {407}
estimated interest payable (£415k]

and lower than anticipated income

from nterest receivable [EBk) has

had a positive effect on the

Authority's costs,

Overall underspend for the year {136}
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A summary of the Balances at 31 March 2015 with
g comment about why the pmounts gre set aside =
showm &5 fallows:

Ern

General Reserve 11.639
To cover risks To the Authorty in
carrying ot its functions, and in
lima with the budget sirategy to
mitigate the impact of the Lewy
on constiivant District Councils.
There is already 8 commitment
to utifising a very signiflicant
propartion of this reserve to
subsidise the Levy in 2017-18
and it |5 likely that the
remainder will be required n
the year that fellows. This
cannot continue unabated as
the fund will run out guickhy,
leaving a chiff face increase in
the Levy over the next budget
cycles.

Capital Reserve (o]
The Capital Reserve which was
ariginally funded from revenue

wins transferred at the year-end

pack 1o the General Fund, Lo

provide additional support

Capital Receipts Reserve 0L0sS
This répresents the amount

D
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received in réspect of dale of the
IVE; a5 1T was income from a
capital receipl it may only be
used to fund capital or to pay off
outstanding loar debt

11.694

Aszats

There are no signiflcant new assets of labilities
that impact on the Authority In the year,

The Autharity's assets were the subject of a year-
end valuation in 2015-16 (o ensure that they are
carried in the accounts al the most appropriate
value under the Talr value basis of measurement,

The Authority signed the Resource Recovery
contract for the long term disposal of residual
wiaste at the end of 2013, The contract will include
the Authority using a Rail Transfer Loading Station
In Knowsley, with waste being transported from
thera to an Energy from Waste Plant at Redecar for
ultimate disposal. The Assets and hiabilities
associated with this PRP contract will only be dus
te come onto the Authority's Balance Sheet after
the piant has been commissioned and is fully
operationai, which 5 expected 1o be in Summer
2017, i.e. the following financial vear
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Pension abilities

The balance sheet ncludes a net pension liabifity
of £4.7M. This |s an increase of E7TG7k on the
pension liability in the prior year's accounts. The
changs in the liability reflect the changes in the
value of the assets held by the pension fund on
behall of the Authority and the numbers of and
ages of employess and former employees who are
Members of the penslon schemes which the
Autharity has a liability to support, The values of
the pension assets and Fabilities are assessed
perindically {every three years) by the scheme
actuaries and contribution rates for employers are
adjusted to ensure that the schemes lizbilities are
funided over time, Employee contribution rates are
aiso reviewed periodically to further ensure
ligksilitzes are funded.

Unusual material lterms

The Authority did not make any matertal unusual
payments in the year

Changes in accounting policy

There has been no significant change in any
accounting policy in the year,
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Changes in statutory functions

There have been no changes in statutory functions
during the year

Current borrowing

The Authority has a portfolio of foans taken out
between 1589 and 2007 to finance capital
expendilure over & number of years; the
outstanding balanse at 31 March 2017 wiss just
over E14M. One of the loans was a Lender Option
Borrower Option {LOBE) loan with a commercial
bank, but during the year they sxercised their
option to transfer the loan from being a LOBD to
replace it with a normal commercial logn, there
wis no fee charged and the rate of the loan iz in
ling with other similar ife loans. The remainder are
lzans from the Public Works Loans Board [PWLE),
The PWILE leans are scheduled to mature at
varkous dates between 2017 and Z05E, while the
final maturity on the former LOBD Is 2065

The Authority has not borrowed additional funds
ta finance capital expenditure since 2007, and has
instead relied on utilising a capital reserve set

gside from Genera! Funds to support capital
developments, The Capital Fund no longer contains
balances to fund capital developments m luture
and should these be reguired Turther predential
borrowing is likily to ba reguired,
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Prowisions, contingencies and write offs
The Authority carries provisions in the accounts,

One of the proviskons 15 in respect of the Closed
Landfill sites managed by the authority, The
Authority established the clozed landfill prowision
in 2013/14 o recognise the need to provide for
the porential future costs of maintaiming Closed
Landfill sites across Merseyside for which the
Authority is responsible, In 2016-17, thi
calculation of the amount set zside a5 a prowvision
kas been reviewsd and amended to better reflect
the patantial future costs that the Acthority may
face in managing its Closed Landfilt sites. This has
resulted in a reduction 1o the carried forward
provision of E52k (down (o £4,261k), reflecting in
the main, a gradual reduction 1o the smounts that
will be zpent on closed land fill sites year on vear
as they begin o stabilise and setile reguiring less
maintemance.

Other provisions include an obligation to Mersey
Wiaste Holdings Lid, the Autharity's whally owned
subsidiary, under & back to Dack funding
arrangemeant for a payment made by the Company
o the Citrus Pension Fund. To date the Company
has nol sought pavment Lo discharge the
chligation
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The Authority has a 50% stake in Bidston Methane
Ltd. Currently the company I8 running at a loss and
the Autharity's share of the loss is 207K as at 31
Parch 2016 based on the fatest available accounts
to 31 March 2016 (which Is an increase of £4k),
although the ‘loss’ is offset by the assets heid by
the company that aré due back to the Authority in
thie fonger term. The Authority has plven a
tommitmant to suppart the company financially;
hence itremains valued as & going concern, The
Authority therefore recognises that it has.a
cantingent labHity for its share of the potential
Ioss.

Theere are no significant write offs or Impairment
lesses to reflect in the accounts

At this stage there are no material events,
adjusting or non-adjusting, that could have an
impact on the financial statements or the way that
they should be interpreted.

Local economic circumstances

The statement of accounts for 2016-17 should be
considered alongside the budget for 2017-18 and
the medium term financial prospecs for the
Authority.

The current financial environment that local
government in England faces is one of continuing
austerity, The Authority’s constituent District
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Councils have faced a number of years of very
significant spendmg reductions and that pattern is
%61 1o continue and to a degree accelerate as the
Goverrment moves from a national model of
supporting local government spending to 4 more
localised model with opportunities for funds raised
locally to be retained locally. During this period of
financial rebalancing the resources available to
constituent District Councilts have been reduced
significantly, At the same time over a perod of
seven budget cycies the Authority has reduced or
mainiained the Levy on the Mstricts at @ nevtral
level, The maintenance of the Levy at these levels
has only been possible in the latter years with
cushioning from the General Fund.

Financial pressure on the Authority continues to
grow, and despite reductions in staffing 2nd other
subsidiary costs the main oost driver i Waste
tonnages deliverad by the Districts, The transition
from landfill to the commissioning phase and then

D
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full pperation of the new Ressurce Recovery
Contract during 2017-18 and onwards will
eventually see an initial growth in costs,

Iri the budged for 2017-18 the Authority recagnised
this growth in costs, and was looking to mcrease
the Levy modestly over the next three years,
Constituent District Councils requested that this be
delayed, and in agreeing to this request the
Authority approved a budget with a Levy that was
reutral in overall terms once 3gain = recognising
that this would mean utlsing all finandal reserves
and eventually leading to larger bavy increase
proposals in future,

For 2017718 the prospect of expenditure
supported by Levy and a significant contribution
from General Fund balances meant that the
budget Is in balance, the prospect for future years
is significantly less certain,
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Litilising the remaining General Fund balances 4
[y o b sufficient to close the gap to the Lewy,
keeping the patential increase still refatively
reasonable in 200E/19, Thereafter, with little
avallzble out of the Authenty's reserves to support
the Levy there is a prospect of & more significant
Levy increase, although the financial benefits of
the RAC should being to be felt, through third party
kncomie and alectricity income sharing.

&g 3 part of the budget process the Authorty
agread with the City Region to undertake o
strategic review of waste disposal and callection
across Merseyside, this may bead to a review of the
assets managed and maintained by the Autharity
across Merseyside, with a view to reducing costs in
the Medium Term, This review was conducted
during 2016/17. The autcome of the review will
become clear during 2017-18 and the Authority’s
Members will be asked to consider the Authority's
response to any proposals as they are made,
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MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

The Authority's responsibillties
fhe dgthority & regueed o

*  Make arrangemants for the proper seminatralion of dh Inancal allars and 1o secure that one of it afficens has (he tesponsibd|ty for P adrmmistraten of o
A i thes Authonty tThet allices m the Brerior of Finance:
o Mandge it e o scute economic effioent and eMeciive use of B3 crsources and saleguard ity asseta and
¥ Approve e Statermest ol Adcounts
The Director of Finance's respormibilities
The [hrector of Finance. eluewhere raferred 10 a5 the Tredsorer 1o the Authorty, 1 responsitile for the pregaration of the Autsarity'§ Statersent of Accoursy i secardbres

with Satutory props practioml ak wat out n the CIFFAMLASAALD Code of Practics on Locsl Authority Aceounting un tha Uaitea Kingdom |Ihe Cade| n repanmg this
statement of accounts ine Orector of Dinarce nag,

w  Seecled vuiabie sccouning poficies and then Jpoked them consiiterly.
#  Made judgemeniy and mnmates hat were reasorabie and prudant and
= Comphed with ihe 'ocal aulbsrity Code

The Tireglor of Fnamge bas also

& Hepl propen accounling recitds which s ap hoodste ang
*  Tawnn reasonanie steps for the prevention and setechan of fraud and ofher ureguistitios
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Annual Governance Statement 2016/17
scope of responsibitity

Merseyside Waste Disposal Autharity (operating as
hierseyside Recyeling and Wasta Authority) [the
Authority| Is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with tha law
and proper standards, and that public maney i
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and wsed
economically, efficiently and effectively, Tha
Authority alsg has a duty under the Local
Governmant Act 1999 (o make arrangements 1o
secure continuous improvement in the way in
whitch Its functions are exercised, having regard to
a combination of economy, efficiercy and
effectiveness.

in discharging this averall responsibility, the
Authiority Is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangemeants for tha governance of ks affairs,
facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
and which includes arrangements for the
manzagement of risk.

The Authority has approved and adopted a code of
corporate governance, which is consistent with the
principles of the OPFAS/SOLACE Framewark

Delvering Good Gowsrnancs in Local Governmeant

D

STEETHEL A AL & W T R Ty

& copy of the authority's coda B on our website at
WAL T I:‘TSE'l.".IIj“‘l.'l.'ﬂﬂ.ﬂl:l'n' L% OF Can bE' ﬂh‘l‘ﬁined
fram:

The Clerk

Meraeyside Recycling and Waste Authority
7" Floor, Mo 1 Mann lsland

Liverpaol

L3 18P

This statement explains how the Autharity has
compled with the code and alzo meets the'
requirements of The Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015, Part 3 paragraph 10, which
requires all relevant bodies 1o prepare an annual
governance statement,

The purpose of the governance frarmewark

The governance framework comprises the systems
and processes, culture and values by which the
Authority i directad 2nd controlied and its
activities through which it accounts to, engages
with and leads its communities, 1t enables the
Authority to monitor the achievement af its
strategic abjectives and to consider whether those
pizjectives have led to the delivery of approgriate
services and value for money

Thi sysbem of internal control is 2 significant part
of that framework and is designed to manage risk

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

te @ reasonable leval. it cannat eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and
can therefore only provide regsonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of
inbernal controd is based on an ongoing process
designad to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievernant of the Autharity's policies; sims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential
impact of those risks being reakised, and to
manage them efficiently, affectively and
economically.

The governance tramework has bean in place st
the Authority for the year ended 31 March 2017
and up to the date of approval of the Staterment of
Accounts,

The governance framework

The following are the key slements of the syitems
and processes which underpin the Autharity's
BovErnance arrangemeants;

s there [5.an established Performance
Managemenl Framework underpinned by
a Corporate Plan which sets out the
Authority’s long-term aims;

*  the current Corporate Plan was approved
by Members on 207 November 2015 and
has a mission stalement, "To contribute
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io the economic, environmental and
social well-being of Maerseyside by
promoting the best use of resources and
£nsuring that waste |s sustaimabhy
managed." The plan is defivered through
the development and implementation of
an annual 3ervice Delvery Plan which
refiects current corporate sirategies, risks
and priorities;

performance against the Service Delivery
Plan & published arna quarterly basis and
circulated to Members and other
stakeholders,

there is.a foinl Recycling and \Waste
hanagement Strategy for Merseyside in
plece which has been approved by all
partrer organisations and was usad to
inform the procurement of major waste
contracts, most notably the Waste
Management and Recycling Contract and
the Resource Recovery Contract;

there |52 Risk Management Strategy in
place which provides the Authonty with a
framework 1o identifiy and analyse the
risks associated with its activities and
ultimately suppaorts the Autharity in
planning for and delivenng its Corporate
Flan.

D,

rofes and responsibilivies of Members and
the Scheme of Delegation are reviewed
and approved annually. The Authority's
scrutiny function is delivered by the full
Authority and communication pratoesls

are in place;

Codes of Conduct are in place for officers
and for Members, both of which include a
Register of Interests;

The Authority's Constitution, including a
comprehensive set of Procedural Rules
which defing its internal contral
mechanisms, 1§ in place and reviewed

regularly,

the authority's financial management
arrangements conform with the
govemnance reguirements of the CIPFS
Statement on The Rale of the Chiel
Financial Officer in Local Governmenl
| 2010};

audit functions are delvered through the
full Autharity with specific powers
delegated to the Audit-and Governance
Committes;

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

®  |ntefnadl audit is provided by 5t Helens
Councll under a service level agreement
and operates to Internal Auditing
Standards a5 lald dewn by CIPFA;

#  procedures and processes are inplace ta
gnsure that the Authority conducts Its
business in compliance with its iegal
obligations, including specialist advice
where necessary;

#  there is 3 Whistleblowing Policy and a
Commeants and Complaints Procedure to
assist in the transparency of the
Authority's business;

®  praining and development for Members
end officers s delivered through the
Member Training and Devgopment Plan,
the Stalf Development Scheme and a
Corporale Training Programime;

®  Lhe Authority has 8 Communications
Strategy to deliver clear channels of
communication with stakeholders and
consultation processes are undertaken as
necessary, The strategy is currently under
raview to ensure i remains fit Tor
PUTEOSE;

Page | 16



= Inter Authority Agreements are being
revigwed and where approprigte; put in
place to ensure eflective partnership and
foint warking arrangements; and

# |nternal Control 3tatements of Assurance
are obtained from the Chief Exscutive as
Chiet Officer for Authority, from 5t Helens
MBC which provides key services and
from the board of Mersey Waste Holdings
Limited in which the Authority has a
ves{ed interest.

Rerwiew of effectiveness

Thie Autharity has responsibility for conducting, at
lpast annually, a review of the effectivensss of its
governance framewark including the system of
internal controd. The review of effectiveness |5
informed by the work of the executive managers
within the authority, namaly the Primary
fzsurance Group, who have responsibility for the
development asd maintenance of the governance
environment, the head of internal audit’s annual
repoft, and also by comments made by the
external auditors and other review agancies and
inspectoraies,

Thid Authority measures its arrangements agalnst a

Code of Corporate Governance developed and
approved by the Authority bn accordance with the

MRWA
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CIPFASSOLACE framework. The Code supparts the
delivery of good governance through the
establishment of the following roles

*  the Authority is responsibe for the
approval of the Code of Corporate
Governance and Its #ssociated annoal
review gnd assessment;

#  bhe Auathority is responseble for the
apgroval of the Annual Governance
Statement;

= the Authority is responsible for the
pppreval of the Annual Staterment of
Agtounts onca thay have been approved
by the Chiaf Finance Officer and audited;

®  tha scrutiny function is provided by the
full Authority;

®  the Chief Finance Officer |5 responsthle for
ersuring the proper financial
-administraticn of the Authanty, incuding:

= the preparation of the statement
of accounts;

o aceounting recerds and control
systems; and

o internd audit

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

®  3udit and risk issues are dealt with by the
full Autharity; and

¢ the Audit and Governance Committee has
delegated powers to deal with
governance matters where statutory
desdlines require approvals prior io
scheduled full Authority meetings.

The Primary Bisurance Group has reviewed the
Authority's Code of Corporate Governance and
conducted an annual assessment to identify and
address any weaknesses in the Authority's
Eovernance arrangements. An actlon plan for
delivering improvements has been developed and
will be implemented during 2017518 1o continue to
strengthen and improve the Authority's
povernance.

We have bean advised on the implications of the
result of the review of the effectivensss of the
governance framework by the Primary Assurance
Eroup ard that the arrangemants continue to be
regarded as fit fior purpose in accordance with the
governance framework, The areas already
eddressed and those to be specifically addressed
with new actions planned are cutlined below.
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Significant governance issues

The review process did not highlight any significant
izsues regarding the Autharity's governance or
imternal control environment.

Dther governands iisues

The review progess bighlighted some areas where
there i5 & need o improve governance and
controls. Whilst these are important and action
plans are being developed to address them they
are not considered significant, Aress for

improvement includa:

»  Contribution to the Implementation of the
LStrategic Review undariaken by the
Merseyside Councils and the Combined
Authorty,

# A review of the Performance Management
System to ensure it delivers effective
oUTCOMmes

We propose over the coming year to take sTeps to
adress the aboye matters to further enhance our
governance arfangements. \We are satisfied that
these sieps will address the need for
Improvements that were identified in our review
of effectiveness and will monitar their
implementation and operation as part of our next
annual relew.

Signed
Chipf Executive
Agprel 2017
Skgned:
Chpir
April 2017

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17
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MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

This statement shows the cost of providing services during the year, and the income raised to cover that expenditure, in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practice. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Levy purposes, which |5 st out in the Movement in
Razerves.

201516 Nodes 201817

Expendiime Irrarme G Expendituns inporme Ment

£0040 £ EOOG EDOD E00O EQOD
a1 15,890 70327 Environment and reguiatory senaces TB.237 (5,852 70.385
182 182 Corpofate and democratic core 182 182

0 Mon disiributed costs 0

763540 {5,800 TO.E00  Surplus/Deficit on Continuing Operationa 76418 {5.852) 70,567

{3,413 Financing and Invesimanl income and Expenditure B 1.626

{65,591)  Levy Income 10 {85.581) (65.581)

1,505  (Surplus} or Deficit on Provislon of Services =] 6802

{244 In year Gensral Fund Adpusiment c

(4 215) Surpkes or Deficit an Revaluation of non corment gssets o

Imparmant Iesses on non-curmant assels chamged o the Revaluation

Resene & CAS a

{70} Revaiuation of closed landfill s4e provision {18)

{513} Remeasurements of the net defined benefil llabilily (asset) £51
i5.742) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 535"

{#,237) Total Comprehensive income and Expenditura 7137
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MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

The batance sheet shows the assets and liabilities of the Authority at the year end. The net assets of the Authority are matched by two categones of reserves. The first is
useable reserves which can be deployed for any purpose, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of working capital, The second category, un-useable reserves set
aside in grder 1o meet statutory and accounting requirements

313t March 2016 Notes 38t March 2017
£000

38,541 Property, Plant & Equipment 11 38,257

5042 Long Term Invesimants 6042
44,585  Long Term Assets (1) 43,259

22 Inventones 15 22
1,465 Shaa Term Deblors 16 3,696
7,514 Cash and Cash Equivalents 0
8001 Current Assets (2) 3,718

0 Shord Term Bornwing
(12 784) Short Term Creditors 18 {9,041)
Short Tesm Lease
{281} Provisiong 18 (266)
{8} Grants receipts in advance
{13,054} Curent Liabilities {3) (8,307)
{5,144) Provisions & Cash Equivalents 17+18 19.579)
{17,044} Long Term Barowing 12 {16,901}
(18,738} Othar Lang Term Lisbilities a4 (18,326)
(40,924) Long Term Liabilities (4) (45,208}
(392) Met Assets (1+2+3+4) (7.496)
{18.055) Usable reserves (5) MRS {11,6E8)
16447  Unussble Resares (8) 20 18,184
302 Total Reserves (5+6) 7,456
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MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

The cash flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash eguivalents of the Authority during the year, The statement shows how the Authority generates cash and
cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and linancing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is 2 key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of Levy of from charges for services, Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows:
have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activites ae useful in predicting
claims on future cash fliows by providers of capital [l.e borrowing) 1o the Autharity

201516 Mates 200817
EQ00 EQO0
(1,505}  Net surplus or (deficit] on the provision of services {6,602}
i2.682) Adjustment io surplus or deficit on the provision of senvices for non-cash movements 21 {5,405)
Less ilems included in the net surplus or deficit on the prowvision of services that are investing and financing
{2.340]  activibes i {1,626)
Less iterns included in the net surplus or deficit on the provsion of services (hat are invesing and financing
(4.000)  achvibes 0
2,153 Net cash flows from operating activities {10,381}
{1.762) Net Cash flows from Investing Activities iz 28
(5.070) Net Cash flows from Financing Activitles a3 {2.229)
(4B68) Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents {12,584)
8926  In Year Adjusimenl i}
11,257 Eauhand:u:hgﬁuﬁmﬂaatlhemnhgufﬁmpmﬂrﬂpaﬂm 7514
7,514 Cash end cash equivelents al the end of the reparting period ;H_ﬂ'ﬂ]}
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MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

This statement shows the movement in the year on the difterent reserves held by the Authority, analysed into 'usable reserves’ (l.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure of recuce local taxation ) and other reserves, The Surplus or {Deficit) on the Provision of Services fine shows the true economic cost of providing the Authority's
services, mors detalls of which are shown In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts requited te be
charged to the General Fund for Lewy setting purposes, The Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance
before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reterves undertaken by the Authority,

GGeneral Fund Earmarked  Capital Receipts Tot#l Usable  Total Unusable Total Auihority
Balance Genaral Fund Razerve Fazares Reserves Fasenios
20187 Hasnres
E£000 EDOG EODD £000 E000 EDOD
Balance as at 1 April 2016 (15.626) {2,428) 0 {18, 055) 18,447 a9z
Movement in reserves during the year
Surplus or {deficit} on the prowision of services 6602 602 &,802
Mher Comprehenswe Income and Expenditure 538 {20} 818 (18] 02
] =
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 7140 120) o 7120 (18] 7,104
Adzusiments bebwean accounting basis & funding
basiz undar regulatons
— = {898} (55) (753 753 0
Met Increaze/Decrease before Transfers o
Earmarked Reserves 5,442 {20) {55} 6,367 Tav T 104
Transfers to-or from earmarked resanves {2.448) 2,448 1] i}
Increase/Decrease In Year 3,993 2428 {55} 5.367 737 7.104
Balance as at 31 March 2017 (11.633) [1] {55]) {11.688) 18,184 7498
Page | 23




MRWA statement of Accourits 2016-17

Gengral Funu Earmarked  Capsal Recaipis Total Lsabile Tatal Unusahie Total Authorily
2015116 Comparative Year i i S Ridenes RaEVES
E000 E0DD E000 EDGD £000 EQOD
Balance as at 1 April 2015 {16,038) {4,181) (20217 24,848 4528
Movement in reserves during the year
Surphus or {deficit) on the provision of sarvices 1,505 1,508 1,505
Oilbier Compratiensive Insome and Expasdijste (G441 (Bl (4,798} {5,742)
Total Comprehensive Income and Expanditure
561 0 o 561 (4,788) (4,237
Adjusimants batween accounding bass & funding bases
under regulations (Nate S79) {151} [151) 151 0
Met Increase/Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves 410 ] 1] 410 (4.647) {4, 237)
Transfers o o from earmamed resenes 1,762 1. 762 11.752) 0
increase/De in ¥
g el e o 410 1,752 0 2,162 (6,399) {4,237)
Balance gs at 31 March 2016 {15,626) 12,429} o {18,055) 18,447 382
Page | 24




MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

e Ao £ ey



MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

Page | 26

G0,



Notes to the Accounts
NOTE 1
Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted

Under the Code of Practice on Local Autharity
Atcounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 (the
Code), the Authonty i required to disclose
information setting out the mpact of an
accounbing change reguired by a new accounting
stamdard that has been issued bul not yel adopbed
by the Code.

Currently there have been no such standards
syl that are applicable to the Authority and its
activitkes,

NOTE 2

Critical judgements made in applying accounting
policies

in 2pplying the accounting policies set out in the
financial staterments, the Autharity has had to
make certain judgements about complax
transactions o these mvolying uncertainty about
future events, The critical judgements made in the
Staterment of Accounts are

D
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2] Influences an going concern, such as
future funding levels and long term
contracts. The constituent autharines, In
common with the rest of local
government, are exdperiencing significant
financisl pressures but the Autharity is
commitied o maintaming and iImproving
value for money and o identifying
additional sources of funding where
possible, to reduce demands on the lewy it
raises from constituent authorities

Bl The Authority has determined that it
Exercises control puer Dwe antities;

*  Mersey Waste Holdings Lid
through 100% sharsholding; and

#  Bidston Methane Ltd through a
joint venture

The Authority's interests in these two companies
are reflected in the Authority's Group Accounts at
B3 to 95 of the Statement of Accounts,

o} The Autharty ls desmed to.control the
services and the resrdual value of assets

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

dj

created under the Waste Management
and Recycling Contract with Veolla. The
accounting polickes for service concession
arrangements [formerly knawn as PFI
schemes and similar contracts) have been
ppplied to these contracts and assets
{valued at £16.0m} are recognised a5
Property Plant and Equipment on the
Authority's balance sheet. The cost of the
Autharity's conbract s mitigated by some
third party Income but this i both
variable and insufficiently significant to
impact on the balance sheet entrios in
respect of the service concession,

The Authority has reviewed the
accaunting classification and treatment af
the househald waste and recycling
centres leased from constifuent
autharities. The Authority’s wew s that
both the Tand and bullding elements of
the leases are operating leases and
therefore no assets recognised as
Property Plant and Equipment on the
Authority's balance sheet
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#] The Autharity has a 50% slake in Bidstan
hiethame Lid Currently the company is
rurning at-z loss and the Authooty's share
ot the loss 15 170,000 based on the [atesy
ayailable accounts which are as at 31
March 2016 The Authaority has given a
commitment to continue {0 support the
company financially, hence it remains-
valued as a gong concern. The Authority
has recognised a contingent Habibity at
Mote 31 for the Authonty's share of the
potential loss,

i The suthority provides Tor future costs
associnted with closed langfill sites, The
provision reflects the Authonity's statutory
ocbligation to manage closed landfill sites
The value of the provision is based on the
anticipated expenditure which will be
incurred over the statutory minitanng
period for each sibe in pocordance with
guidance ssued by the Environment
Agency, The value of the provision has
been estimated based on the average
management cost over the last sy years;
extrapolated over the remaining fife of
each site and than discounted to refiect

MRWA
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the time value of money, using HM
Treasary discount rates, to arrive at an
estimate of the total provision. This
estimate is updated annually,

The Authority entered inte a service
concession arrangement with Sita
Semplorp now Merseyside Energy
Recovery Lid in 2013 for the desgn, build
and operation of an ensrgy from waste
laciiity to be located in Redcar in
Cleveland and a rail transfer loading
station in Kirkby on Merseyside The
Commissioning phase of the confract wag
dug toend in Septemiber 2016 with full
operation from Octaber, There were
delays in the Commisshoning which meant
the plant will mot be handed over until
sumimer 2017 at which point the
accounting requirements of IFRIC 4 and
IFRIC 12 will ke taken fully into account

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

MNOTE 3

Azsumptions made about the future and other
major sources of estimation uncertainty.

The Statement of Accounts contains a number of
estimates figures that are based on assumptions
made by the Authority sbout the future or that are
otherwise uncertain, Estimates are made taking
into-account historical experience, current trends
and other refevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty,
actual results could be materially different from
the assumplions and estimates,

The items in the Authorty's Balance Sheet at 31
Pdarch F01T for which there may be a riskof
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial
year are shown in the following table:
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Uncertaintjes
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Eftect il actual results diffor from assumptions

Property, plant and equipment

Pravisions [Closed landfill sites)

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are
dependent on assumgtions about the way the asset
is used and the amownt of repairs and maintenance
required

In compiling the asset register, in the absence of
records distinguishing the value of bulldings from
land for individual assets, the Authority has vsed the
March 2010 ssset veluation to estimate the value of
tand and buildings held prior to 1 April 2009.

The Authority has made provision for the anticipated
expenditure costs of minaging the ciosed landfill
sites, This is based on the pattern of expenditure in
the previgus 6 years, which have then been

discounted to net present value using MM Treasury

discount rates plus an estimate of inflation &t CP1,
Future costs may vary and the provision will be
revisited at each subseguent balsnce shest dabe,

If the usatul |ife of assets is reduced, depreciation
mereases and the carnying amount of the assets falls,

If the extimated valus of tand s tnderstated, the

depseclation charges in subseguent years will be
overviated and vice wersy,

The provision does nat impact on the useable reserves
balsnce. Therefore there is no effect on the Authority's
usealle reserves I the assumptions made prove
InCorrect,

If the discount rate increases by 1% the provision would
reduce by £0.057m. Conversely if the discount rate
decreaies by 0.1%, the provision would increase by the
sEmE amournt
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Gilmass Materials Recyeling Facility

Pensions Hablilty

Accruals of waste contract payments

Uncertainiles

The WMREC contract payment & nol separated from
the cost of the finance leate under IFRIC 4 for the
Gilmoss MREF

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions
depends on a number of complex judgements
redating to the discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected 1o indrease, changes in
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected
treturns on pension fund assets. A firm of comsulting
actuaries iz engaged by the Pension Fund to provvide
expert advice aboul the assumptions to be applied

The final waste data flows and settiement of the
year end costs incurred by the Autharity i not
completed until the end of September each year,
Estimates are made of bath the waste data flows
and the final amounts in settlement of the costs
payable by the Authority at the year end.

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

| Effect I actual results differ from assumptien

A estimate of the amount payable over the lifeof the
contrat for the finance lease element of the Gllmoss MAF
haz been made, This is based on the value of the asset
and the estimated life of the assat in the contract.

The effects on the net pensions ability of changes in
indnidual assumptions are reviewed annually by the
Autherty, Variations in the key assumptions will have the
following imvpact an the net kability:
* 3 0.1% increate in the discount rate will reduce the net
pensian [lability by £0.293m;
* - 0L1% increase in the pssumed level of pension
increases will inorease the net pension liability by
ED. 288m;
* N increase of one year in longedty will increase the
fiEt pension labiliby by £0.354m,
If the waste data fiow information is significantly different
from that expected then the waste contract payments,
thee Laindfill tax paymants will be affected. However, the
impace of this fing settfement (s not expectad to be
significant ay the Authority uses its own waste data in
arriving al the estimates, those figures ane the ones that
are verified in September and the Authority's experience
Is that thers have not been sigiificant changes in recent

yERIE.
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Uncertabnthes
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Eftect IF actual results differ from assumptions

Leasing Discount Rate Tha mabdi_n:nunt rate for lease costs 15 not
separated clearly within lmases and the Gilmass MRF
lease

Long term contracts The Autharity has entered Into a long term service

concession contract with Sita Sembeorp LK (S5},
now renamed Messayiide Energy RBecovery Limined
[MERL). The comrtract makes provision for penalty
payments in the event thal the contract s
terminated or significantly altered by sither party,

The estimated discount rate has been used to srrive st
the net present value of future lease payments based on
treasuty discount rate and RPI,

AL this stage the probability of the contract not being
executed in substantially the same form as It was entered
into |s considered very remote, therefore no
consideration of whether to include a contingent liability
In respect of the penalty dauses contained In the contract
being applied has been made. This position will be
reviewsd each year.
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NOTE 4
Material iterns of income and expanse

201847

£000

(4,000) Dividend Payment from MVWHL !
21,284 Landfill fax paymenis 19041
17,582 Wﬂ_lﬂu'l:mgmunt & Recyclng confract peyments 30,398
4,282  Landfil contract payments B.483
1,232 FCC Interim Contract o
1,883 Virdor Interim Conlract 422
0 Suezx T.307
3405  Grealer Manchester intefim Contract ]
—— : 63,642
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This s 2 new statement which is designed to bring together the spending and funding basis of the Authority with the farmal accounting framewark and therefor help to
demaonstrate how the Authority has wsed its funds

70,887

{4,000)
67,478

(708)
B&.TT0
{B5.581)
1,178
(20,228)
2181

{18,058)

D

il v PR P b WAL B i s

i jirnlmsrils
rbwsEn
funding and
acocounting

ED
(329

(1,178}

(2 008}
B2

(1,174

o8
(471}

(471}

L

axpandilure fn
tha CIES

LWDLA Eslablishment
Wakle Management confracis

Clazed Landfil sies

Fents. rates & degreciation

Fecyeling Credits

Commumications

Strategy & Resources

Confract Baview

MET COST OF SERVICE

Inferast (Met)

Dnidands

MET DPERATIMNG EXPENDITIARE

Transfars to from Genersl Fund
Cotibribution tof from CAk

TOTAL COST OF SERVICE

Ly Incoms

HET SURPLUS! CONTRIBUTION M YEAR
Gipening GF batance at 1st Apnl
Contrbutiions & use of GF Nat

Closing General Fund Balance 21st March

2078M7

Mot eopondiiurm
chargsable o
the Goneral

Fund
£HH)
16885
B3.132
258
2.101
4065
T

13g

72,405
T4

73.242

{8621)
(1.0300
65,591

(65.561)

{15,055)
B a22

Agjustmonts
Bertwnenn
funding wnd
-ZIE!:I.'IIH'H:H-[]
ElG0

£1.300)

(2.070)
770

{1.30G)

6,748
1.046
G405

6,455

Mard
oapnditurg in
the CIES
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NOTE 5 (A) Note to the Income and expenditure funding analysis
This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to the Net Expenditure Chargeable to the Genaral Fund balance to arrive at the amounts in the

CIES, The relevant transfers between the reserves and are explained in the MIRS

Adpmtments betwoesn sccouniing and Funding basm 20164 T

l'l-l'lj-U!h'nl:llll'_'u fram Genoral Fund to arrive ot Adjustinents for Capitai purposss Mot .:ha:ng.l- Oithiar Total
e CIES ampuns fore the Qifferencos  Adjustmaeonts
PErsioms
EdjumsirrsEs s
Waste Disposal - Net Cost of Services (4B5) (485
Oiher Income and Expenditura fram the
Expenditure and Funding analysis (213} (213)

“Difference between General Fund surplus
ansd the CIES surpius or deficit on provision
of Seryices (488)  (213) 0 (688)

NOTE 5 (8) Segmental income

Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below

HArEHE 201817
Irzpime Trodn Seryioes I aame bram Sorvieas
£500 E000
Waste Disposal Services (5,850} (5.862)
Levy — (66,581} {85,501
_ {F1,487) (71,443)
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MNOTE 6 Expenditure and income analysed by nature

Expanditurel income
Employves benefits expenses
Cither services expenses
Support services recharges
Depreciation & Impaiment
Interest Paymenis

Gain on Digpozal of &sseis
Total expanditune

income

Fees, charges and other servios indomi
interest & swesiment income
Insoms from Lawvy
Total income.
Surplus ar Deficit an the provision of
_Services

205 e

E000

AEHT

ERKD

1,304 1,278
73487 4775
o 0

1,078 1,300
1,208 763
(55}

TT.057 78,062
(5,280) {5,852)
(4,071) {1y
(85,581 (B5,581)
_[75,552) (71,480)
1,505 6,602
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MNOTE 7
Adjustments between accounting and funding basis under regulations

This Mote details the adjustments that are made to the tolal Comprehensive
Income and Expendliture recognised by the uthority in the year i accordance
with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutary
provisions as being available to the Autherity to meet future capital and revenue
expenditure.

The General Fund balance is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the
Authority are required to be paid and from which all liabilities of the autharity
ans to be met except to the extent that statutory ruies might provide otherwise,
These rules can also spacify the financial vear In which liabilities and payments
should impact on the General Fund batance, which is not necessarily in
accordance with proper accounting gractice. The General Fund batance tharefare
summifises the resources that the Authority is statutority empowered to spend
on its servites or on capital investment {or the deficit of resources the Authority
I required to recover] at the end of the financial year

Earmarked reserves are a subset of the General Fund and show those parts of
the General Fund balance that has been set aside for specific nominated
purposes. The belance at the year-end shows the resources that have yet to be
applied for these purpozes at the year end. The Capital Recelpts reserve holds
the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted by
statute from being used other than 1o fund new capital expenditure or to be set
aside to finance historic capital expenditure
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Usable Resorves
Gonoral Fund Baisnce Capinl Recadpis

Movemant 0 Unusabie

Ressrve Hesorvos

E00 £000 £000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of llems deblted or credited to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditurs Statemant:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets (1,300) {1.300)
Fevaluation losses on Property Plant and Equipmant (233 (233
Ingertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement:

Statutory Provision for the Financing of Capital Invesiment 1,184 1,154
Capifal egpenditure charged sgainst the Genaral Fund balancs 21 29
In yiras movernent of (CLF charges as per GT Technical) (16T (187}
Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gainfloss on disposal to the (55} (58)

Comprohensive income and Expenditure Statemani
Adjustments invelving the Pensions Reserve:

Rerversal of items refating to retirement bensfits debited or credited to the [358) {358)
Comprehensive Income and Expanditure Stalement (see Mote 30)
Elﬂ'thuﬁ'&r‘ﬂ pensions contributions and direct payments io pensioners payable in 145 145
the yaar
Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment
Agcount
Total Adjustments (888) 58] (753)
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Unabio Rosarvos

Ganeral Fund Balance Capital Rocolpts
Rizpiea

Mawamont kn

201518 (Comparative yoar) Unusably Reserves

£000 £Q02

Adjustments invaiving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprahensive Income

and Expenditure Statoment:

Charges for depreciation and impakrment of non cufrent assets (1,178 {1,179}
Revaluation losses on Propery Plant end Eguipment {13 (B5)
Insertion of ifems not debited or credited to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statemant:

Slalutory Provision for the Financing of Capial Invesiment 1,318 1318

Adjustiments mvolving the Pensions Reserse:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or (373)

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement (see Note 32) (ar3)

Employer's pensions contribulions and direct payments 1o pensioners 62
payabla in the year 152

Adjustmeant mvalving the Azcumuialing Compensated Absencas

Adjustment Account

Adjustments in relation to Short-term compensated absences 25 25
Total Adstments (181) o (151)

@D
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NOTE B
Transfers to ffrom Earmarked Reserves

This Mote sets out the amiounts set aslde from the General Fund balance in earmarked reserves to provide fimamcing for future expenditure plans and the amount of
earmarked reserves used to meet General Fund expenditure in 2006/17. The Authority has not utidised the reserve

Balance an Eslance an Traiilars Balance an

Transinm

st 1 Apnl =1 31 March at 31 March
016 2018 207

Capit=! Receipts Resene o Ly 1] 7 55 0 65

Capital Resarve £ 184 ] (1,752) 2432 0 (2.432; 0

Total Esrmarked Reserves 4184 0 (1,782 2432 55 2432 56
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HOTE 9

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure NOTES 10
The CIES includes an item af "Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure’;
thiz note prowdes additlonal detadls of that amount,

Levy Income

The authority is funded by a Levy on the five Merseyside District councils. The
Levy each Dislrict pays to the Authorlly & agreed at the start of the year |

WIS | 201817 Levies recaived from member autharties during the year were a5 folows:
EBOL | EDOD
2037  Inieresi pavabie and ssmilar chargos 1,420
i A58

. ara MetmmﬂnnﬁsedamTHWHMﬂam 2018MHE HHEHT

{5:823) Interest receivable and similar income (152) N Sics

3413] Total 1.6826 TOTE  Knowgbey 7215

22384  Liverpool 22,783

8.140 5t Hedens 7.355

12461 Sefon 12,832

16531 Wiral 15,402

65,591 5,591
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NOTE 11
Praperty, Plant and Equipment
This Note provides further information about the Property, Plant and Equipment included on the Balance Sheet

BEcvamanin in 2017

Property, Plant & Equdpmanl [PRRE)
Larssd Bualidngn Waibiltles P & Lyt Tatal PPRE

Faquprmanet

Cost ar Vakeation
Batance a5 # 1 Apri 2015 11,261 23 128 8,007 128 40,547 16,250 0512
Additions _ 120 15 135 0 135
Revaluation momases'decrases io Revakistion
Reserye o 1738 o
Derecognition - Dsposgls . 11413 ‘“ﬂ_ o {'H'l_}_
Balante s at 31 March 2047 11,264 A8 127 T a0,516 a5
Daepreclation and kmpalrment - . L i 17488 40,518
Balance as at 1 April 2016 B26 203 7 ¥ 1] 1.238 oo
Depreciation Charge o RO 801 o 1.300 o 1,300
Depreciation and impaimants wrigten owt bs
Foavaliation Fesenm e -]
Cmpreciahon gnd mpesmanis taken o Swplus or
Dzl on iha Provision of Senjices .
Batance as at 31 March 2017 s # ﬁ 8 iﬁ 1238 Iﬁ“
Net Book Value i '
Balance as at 31 March 2617 10,638 LT sATS o 16,750 8,387
Belance as at 31 March 2015 R 17,648 & ke o m 185042 15,543
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Kicremrmmid m TO1508

Property, ifland & Eguepment (PPRE}

Cost or Vatuation
Bafance &5 &t 1 Aonl 2015 111758 18,553 7.8 a8 -3T,58T 16,2580 IF,.687
Addilions a6 1624 1" 1,852 LR, 3 3378
Revaluation mereasos/secraasas o Revalisation
Y 2851 {1,768) 1,18 1.183
Darscoghitian - Dispesals (1.624) Laad) [1.824)
Balence as &t 31 March 2016 11381 21,128 8007 126 40,522 16,2650 40,522
Depreciation and Impalmant —

i il 2015
Balance as at § Apdl T - o 1608 1238 2800
Depraciation and impairmants writtan puf {0
Revalsaton Reserve ] a
Depreciation and impakrments taken to Sumpdus or
Defait on the Piovision of Senices BG5S 573 1T 1.07E
Dither Mowsmants m Degreciatan or mpaimant a6 (1,139 {1,664) (2.708) (3708
Batance as at-31 March 2016 826 e T ] B 1,238 ura
Hal Baok WVikie
Batanoe as 3l 31 March 3016 10,625 22 B46 B.E3E 126 9,50 16,012 28,543
Befance &5 &t 1 April 20416 10,658 17 646 B85S i:f | J4.9TE 18012 34078
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Valuation

Property plant and equipment are revalued on a
three year cycle in accordance with BICS guldance,
Al assets were revalued 8t 31 March 2016 by the
Authority's valuer, Mr Bernard White (MRICS) of
Kier Services The accounting policies provide
further information on revaluation and
depreciation pofities

The signiticant assumptions apphed inestimating
the fair values ara:

¥ the huthority hes good title to the
property and that they are not subject to
amy unusual or onercus restrictions,;

« nodeleterious or hazardous materials nor
technigues have been used in the
construction of the peogerty Trom past or
present uies

[ B i

#  there are no envirenmental facters which
would cause the valuation fo alter,

The Authority has a relatively small asset base so
revaluests assets periodically, currently on a thres
year cycle, rather than via a rolling revaluation
programme. In between the periodic valuations
the Authority takes note of general advice from its
ool in-house 355l management team as advised
in general terms by the professional valuer
engaged under the terms of the service lavel
agreement about whether sdditional valuations
are necessary and whether the carrying values of
the Authority's assets are lkely to remain
materially accurate

Fallowing advice receivid from the Autharity's
valuer in 2014-15, two household waste recycfing
centres have been revalued by Mowche|

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

Capital Commitments

On 23 December 2013 the Authonty enteced into a
30 year service concession cantract with Sembearp
UK Limited [55UK] te construct and then operate
anenefgy from waste plant

The total value of the contract {|.e. censtructian
and then operation over the 30 vear term of the
contract) is expected to be EL4bn with the initial
construction ghase of the contract, valued at
E386m

The Autharity has no other contractual
commitmentsas at 31 March 2016,
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NOTE 12

Financlal Instruments

carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities

01510 LI
Gt Tl
Enign | 060
Casrrent assets
a.97h @ Loans and receivabhes 1,654 [
BATR 0 Tolal incheded in current assets 1506 0
Liahilities
(12, FEdp [F8.600)  Firancal iabilfies a1 amotsed cost _ED_._HI]- [ a0
{12,784) (25,853 Totad included In |katites moat) [76,568)
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Fair WYalues of Assets and Liabifities

Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by
loans and recewvables and long-term debitors and
creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at
amorlised cost. Thair fair value can be assested by
calculating the present value of the cash flows that
will take place over the remaining term of the
instrurients, using the following assumptions:

#  The fair value of trade receivables
ydebtars) and payabdes |craditors) are
assumed to be the invoiced or bifled
AMELNE;

#  Forall PWLE loans the Interest rate wsed
for the purposs of calculating the fair
valug is takan to be the rate available for
new foans within the relevant banding at
31 March 2017;

T PR R e N AT AT T

#  For the Authority’s LDBO, the interest
rate s the rate quoted snd provided by
Caplta; and

®  Noearly repayment |s recognised,
The fair values caloulated are as fallows:

The Authority's financial assets are predominanthy
Ilzans and receivables conslsting principally of
trade debiors and cash (bank) deposits held sither
by the Authority or by 5t Hefens councll on behalf
of the Authority. These assets are initially valued at
fair value and held on the Balance Shesat at
amorlised cost. The amortised cost s caloulated
using the effective interest rate which is the rate
whith exactly discounts the forecast cazhfiows of
the instrument over its expected life [o s carrying
amount. For most short-term assets (e.g. trade

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

debtors) the carrying value is deemed 1o be the
Ivwoiced amount.

The Autharity does not have any investments
required to be classed as sither Avpilable for Sale
or Fair Value through Profic and Loss

The fair value of the Authority's financial liakilities
& mare for (ks PWLE loans than the carrying
amount because the Authority’s portfolio of PWLE
loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where
the interest rates payable are higher than the rates
available for similar loans at the Balance sheet
date. The difference represents the opportunity
el 1o the Authority of continuing to hold
redatively high interest debt compared with
borrowing at current [lower) interest rates.
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FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TTRT
Fulf wiles Carrying Vahm Falr valua
£000 | £000 Ry
Dubtors
8,873 B97H  Loans and recélvables 2,596 3,696
:  Financial assets carried at contracd amourts
B8 3978  Totsl inthuded in Dobtors 4888 1 6EE
Borrawings
(17,044} [@4,051)  Financial Nabilities at smartised cast P TR
(77 Daa} {24.051)  Total included in borrawings (T6,901) (28, 552}
Ciher Long Team Liabligies
(29 593 (41.088)  Total long term liabilities {26,558 (40.510)
Cradhices:
{12,784 IZ7848)  Financisd Nabilities a1 amorsed cost 2,057) (12T
{12, Ted) !;t_z.?ﬂ-l! Tatal creditors _tioa1) {12.764)
(AZAT) {S3E30)  Total tisblities 138,719 (83,274
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Long-term borrowing NOTE 13

The Authority borrows to finance its expenditure on capital assets. The Lang Mature and Extent of Risks Arlsing from Financial Instruments
Term botrowing is analysed as follows:

The Authority’s activities expose it to a vaniety of financial risks;

®  credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fall to pay amounts

due to the Autharity;
Balminoe gt 31 Balance af 31
faroh 2015 | March 3017 » liquidity risk — the possibility that the Authority might not have funds
£000e | Sk available to meet its commitments to make payments: and
Analysis by type
[15.044)  Publc Works Loans Board {14,901) » market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the
(2.000) Market Loan (Former LOBG) {2,000) Authority as & result of changes in such measures as interest rates and
47,0443 HEs01y stock market movements,
The Authority's overall risk management programme focuses on the
Analysis by maturity unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
(214) 1 -2years (78) effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is the
0 2- 5 years o respensibility of the Treasurer, with day-to-day management undertaken by 5t
(3001 5§- 10 years 13TH Hetens Council on behall of the Authority. 5t Helens Council provides written
[16630)  More than 10 years (18.453) peinciples for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
an specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus
(17,044) 118,901) %
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Credit risk
Credit risk arises from deposts with banks and financial instituticns.

The suthority does not have significant credit risk exposure 10 customers as it
rarely supplies goods and sarvices on credit,

Credit risk on deposits Is minimised by using 5t Halens Council to Mmanage day to
day treasury management in line with the Council’s own Treasury Management
Falicy. The maximum exposure to credit risk is that 51 Helens Council fail ey

manies imvested with it by the Authorily. However given that the Council is-a tax-

backed organisation, thiz is an extremely unlikely scenarlo.
Liguidity risk

The Authority refies on the service level agreement with 51 Helens Council to
provide a comprehensivi cash flow management syatem that seeks to ensure
that cash is available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the
Authority has ready access to borrowings from the money markess and the
Pubdic Works Loans Board. There i5 no significant risk that it will be unable to
raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments, Instead, the
risk |5 that the Authority will be bound to replenish a significant propartion of its
borrowings at & time of unfavourabie interest rates. The Authority spts limits on
the proportion of s fixed rate borrowing during specified periods. The strategy
& to ensure that no more than 60% of loans are due to mature within any relling
three-year period through a combination of careful planning of new loans taken
out and {where it is fconomic 10 do so0) making early repayments.

Analyses of the maturity of financial habilities are disciosed at Notas 10 and 33,

MRWA
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Ali trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than ane yBar,

Interest rate risk

The Authority is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to Interest rate
maverments on its borrowings and investments: Movements in interess rates
have a cemplex impact on the Authority, For instance, a rise in interest rates
would havit the following effects:

*  borrowings at variable rates - the interest expense charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise:

*  Dofrowings at fixed rates - the fair value of the iabifities barrowings will
fall;

* investments at variable rates - the interest income credited o the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise: and

* investments at fixed rates - the fair value of the assats will fall

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rats
borrewings would not impact on the Surplus of Deficit an the Prowvision of
Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in
interest payable and recelvable on variable rate borrowings and investments will
be posted to the Surplus or Daficit on the Provision of Serviees and affect the
General Fund Balance.

The Autharity has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. At
present the aim is 1o keep a minimum of its borrowings in variabie rate laans,
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During periods of falling intersst rates, and where economic clreumstances make
it favourable, fixed rate loans may be repaid eardy to limit exposure to losses.

Price risk

The Authority does not invest in equity shates The Authority has a 100%
shareholding in Mersey Waste Holdings Ltd and 3 50% stake in Bidston Methane
Ltd. Neither company i traded in an active market and the Authority has no
plans o trade elther stake.

NOTE 14
Investments

The Authority holds a long-term investment in Mersey Waste Holdings Limited.
The company is Incorporated under the terms of the Companies Acts. The
Authority is the principal shareholder in the company holding £5,138.000
ordinary £1 shares representing 100% of the issued share capltal. This
Investrment is included in the balance sheet at its current value

No changes to the value or nature of this investment have taken place during the
VERT,

D,
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Foreign exchange risk

The Authority has no financial assets or [iabilities denominated in forsign
currencies and thus has ne exposure to loss arising fram movements in exchange
FiflEs.

NOTE 15

Inventory

201814 NET

28  Balance bif 22

22 Purchases of promotional matesial r2

EH_:' "‘E’W-Fﬂﬂd 25 a8n E@m& in the YEET 52‘21

22 Balance cif 22
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NOTE 16
Short term debtors NOTE 17
1516 MMENT Cash and Cash equivalents
£000 £000 .
Th f ;
13 e ) & balance of cash and cash equivalents comprises:
55T - Public Ca ons and Tra Funds B15
272 Bod Exfnr::m Genaral gz? ard 3 248 {a} cash or cash equivalents held by the Authority: and
1484 Total 3,458 (b} cash held on hehalf of the Autharity by 5t Helens MBC
201516 2018MT
L0400
7613 l::aﬂh equivalans (5.071)
1 Cagh held by the Authority 1
TS14  Total (5.070)
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NOTE 18
Short Term Creditors
HMENE H1ENT
ED0 E0
(358) Central Govemment Bodies (44)
(1,108 Deher Local Addhnorites (708}
(11.289) Bodes Extamal fo General Govarment {B.122)
O Other cradifors j!ﬂﬂ
{12.784) Total Short Term Creditors {9,041)
MOTE 19
Proviskans

This provistons at the balance sheet date are required to be split between those
that are likely (o be payable within tweblve months, recognised In the Balance

*  Pension Fund, To date the Company has not sought pavment 1o
discharge the abligation; and

D

T L b Wl B e
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sheet as current liabilities, and those payable after twelve months from the
balance sheet date, recognised as long term Rabilitres. The Authority holds
provasions for the following purposes.

Closed londfill sitesThe Authority estzblshed the chosed landfill provision in
2013/14 to recognise the need to provide for the potential future costs of
maintaining Closed Landfill sites across Merseyside for which the Authority 15
responsshle. There will be a gradual reduction to the amounts that will be spent
on closed land fill sites year on year a4 they begin to stabilise and settie requlring
less maintenance.

Qrher provisions

Other provisions include an chiigation to the Mersey Waste Haldings Ltd under a
back to back funding arrangement for a payment made by the Company to the
Citrus

Page | 50



MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

The follewing Tables analyse the movement in those categorles of provisions.

([} [y 8 S [ Ey L g== 0 T
i Balance in
provisbon Ulilised sz o0 Balence an  provision Uil
durlng during March ak1 April during
2017
E000 EDGG E000 E0OD
Current provisions Current provisions
Dutstanding lagal cases 0 o 4] o Outslandimg legal cases a g o o
Diher provisians (26} 0 0 (28) Other provisions (118} (26) 18 (26)
Closed |andfdl sites (254) (245) 256 (244) Crher provisions {272} (217 218 (254)
(280) (245) 259 (268) @s) (243) 354 [280)
Long-term provisicns Long-term provisions
Outstanding legal cases 0 o 0 0 Ouistanding legal cases o D o 0
Olher provisions (8BS o 0 (B85) Cihar provisions (BEE) 0 0 {@as)
Closed landMl sites {4.281) (32} 260 (4, (124} Closed fandfill sites (£.313) 62 0 (4.261)
(5.148) 3z} %8 (4908) (5,198) 52 0 {5,148)
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MOTE 20
Unusshle Reserves

fair value figures to a historical cost basts), The Account s credited with the
amaunts.set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acoulsition,
construction and enhancement. The Account contains revaluation gains
accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date
that the Revalustion Reserve wad created to hold such galns,

01816 U167
ED0 E000

Note 5 provides details of the source of afl the transactions posted to the

AT HONY : " i Account, apart from those invelving the Revaluation Reserve,
i11,200) Revaluaton Resene (11,238)
3840 Pengions Reserve 4,704
Accomulating Compensaled Absences
17 Adjustmant Account 17
: T ader 2015116 201ERT
18,445 Total Unusable Reserves 19, aaeiil | e
28,038 Balance &t 1 April 25,778
Capital Adjustment Account 20 Opening Balance Adjustment™ 167
28,058 Adjusied Opening Batan 348
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the tming differences arising from the SRR : ng o | _ 25,948
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets “1 I‘."L 'H'“m“;ml-ﬁ::f“ﬂ to ":F::m
and for financing the acguisition, construction or enhancament of those assets Comprahensive Income and Expenditure
under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost af scquisition, o Statemaent: it
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and 1,188  Charges for depreciation and Impalrmant of non 1,300

current agsety
amoriisations are charged to the Comprehenine Income and Expenditure

Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert

@D
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Met writien out amount of the cost of non

1,968 current assets consumed in the year {1,300)
Capital financing applled in the year:
0 Use of the Capital Receints Resare to fmanco {55)
new capital expendiduns
(1,318)  Sfatutory provision for the fimancing of capstal i1,194)
imvestmest charged agains! the Ganeral Fund
balance
(38} Reduclion i Closed Landfill Site Prowision [18)
(276)

{340) Other movements charged 1o the CAA
(1,783] Capital expenditure charged against the 0

General Eund balanca
ﬂ.“ﬂt 1,541
CASTTE  Balance &t 31 March 25,704

** gy Bolinee o due fo o creditor par revrnied out af apenong bofoares i1 prevaus year THis
iffecance 55 nar covsidered modenio owd i therefore inelinded 04 on apering belonce adivctmant

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Autharity arising from
increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equiprment

*  Fevalued downwards or impaired and the gains are last

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the iming differences arising from the diTereny
arrangements for accounting for post-emplayment benefits and for fumding
benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

* Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through
depreciation, ar

#  Disposed of and the gains are realised,

The Resetve contains anly revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2067, the
date that the Reserve was created. Accumislated gains arlsing before that date
are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

H15HEG IMBAT
£000 L0000
(7427} Balance at1 April (11,280}
0 Upward revaluation of assets [E24]

Dowrward revaluston of assels and impairment
lessas not charged fo the SumplusDeficit on the
{3081} Provision of Services

Cifference betwesn fair vafue deprecalion and

128 hisiorcal-cost depreciation 278
(11.280) Satance at31 March {11,238)

post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as the benefits are eamed by employees acoruing years of service,
updating the lizbilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and
IEStment returms on any resources set aside to meet the costs, However,
itatulory arrangements require benefits earned 1o be financad as the autherity
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makes employer's contributions to pension lunds or eventually pays any
pensians for whiich it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions
Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earmed by past
and current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet
them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set
aside by the time the benefits come to be paid,

01816 | 201617

£000 ED00

4,231 Balence ot 1 &pril 3,940

{513) Remeasurements of the net defingd benefil 551
kabiltylasset _

373 Reversal of Hems retaling to relirement benefits debiled 358

or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provisian of
Sanvices i the Comprehensive Income and
Expendiure Statement
(152) Employer's pension contribotions and direct payments {145)
to pensioners. payable in the year
1,040 Balance at 31 March 4,704

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account absarbs the
differances that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from
accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g annual
teave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require
that the impect on the General Fund Balance 15 newtralised by transfers te or
from the Account.

20145116 | 201817
E0dp0 | EiHM
#1  Balance at 1 April 7
{21) Settlemant or canceliation of sccrual made at the end of 7
the preceding year
17 Amounts scerued st the end of the current year 17
Amaunt by which olficer remuneration charged to the
Comprehansive Income and Expenditure Statemant on an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable
in e year in accordance with statutory requirements
17 Balance at 31 March i
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NOTE 21

Cash Flow Statement — operating activitles

Items ncluded in he net sprplus ar deficlt on the provision of services that are
invisting and fimancing activivies:

Z015HE
2076M7T
Enon EDQQ

2,037  Ineres! Payable 1420
373 net interest on the defined benefit labllityiasset) 358
5?1! Interest Receivable ;1%

2338 1,628

The Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services has been adjusted for the
foliowing non-cash movements.

201518
| J016MT
L0050 000
{1,527) Depreciation 1,300
{1,084) ImpaEment & downward revaluations 62
432 Incresssf{Decrease) in credilors (3.BSO)
T {IncreazeiDecreass in myveniory o
{168) ({IncreasepDecreass in debtors {2.231)
(54)  Movemes| in provisions 235
fzg2) Maovement in penaion liability {T64)
(1.883) 15,402}

@D
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The Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services has been adjusted for the
fallowing items that are investing and financing activities:

201516

E000 |
{4,000} Proceeds from shod-erm (not considerad fo be cash a
equivakents) and long-term invesiments (incides
rveatments in associales. joint venitres and

subsidianes)
0 Propeeds from the sale of property, plant and (55)
equipment
(4,000) (55)

NOTE 22

Cash Flow Statement — ineesting activities

L0166 | R1&eMT
£006 | £
1.752 Purchase of FPSE and investment property o

G Procesds from the sale of PP&E and investmen| o
propedy _

0 Ciher outfiows from fnvesating Actities [28)

4752 Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 28
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NOTE 23

Lash Flow Statement = financing activities

S 518 | Z018MT
E000 | 00
(861) Cash payments for the (861)

reduction of the outstanding

liabdity relating to s finance

leage and on-Balance Sheet:

PFI contracts

71 Inferest recaivabla 152

(2,037 |oterest pasd {34200
(2.143) Repaymen of Short and Long

Term Barrowing

Wet Cash fMows from
[5,070) Financing Activities (Z.225)

(MRWA

iy e e b Wb A

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17
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MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

NOTE 24

Exit packages and termination benefits
There were ng “Exit” packages in the current or comparatinve yaar,
Officer remuneration

The Accounts and Audit [England) Begulatans 2011 require focal authorities to disclose the number of employess whose remuneration was 50,000 or morein the
fimancial year, expressed in bands of £5,000, Other than the senior officers whose remuneration is shown separately below at the foot of this Nate, there were no other
officers employed during the year whose remuneration exceeded £50,000 {none in 2013/14
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MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

Salary, Fess and Expirnaes g
Allowancon Allowances

Pemslan Contribution

3

Chief Exeoutive 201617 10,788 BETIT
201548 82,797 1470 10,681 B4 Bap
Director of Finance 20181 T 64,491 1,384 8,708 74,581
201518 GE.822 1,468 8,620 (1]
Directar of Dperations HHEHT 48,878 40 5. G 58,671
201516 BE6.522 2210 8,620 TT.652
Assistant Director - 201617 31,011 582 4,108 BT
Contracts .
Agsistant Director 201817 331422 g1 4,581 a.618
Governance and
Performance (b)
2016116 51,102 1,408 7.120 SB717
Total 201617 260,827 5,135 34177 300,188
20156M448 282473 8,130 34,587 304,671

{1) the Director of Operations retired frem the Authority on 87 December 2016
[2] The Assistant Director - Governance & Performance left the Authority in Cctober 2016
[3] the Assistant Director — Contracts joined the Authority in September 2016
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NOTE 25

External sudit costs

The analysis of audit fees paid 1o the edternal auditor is shawn below:

1EM6 HanT
ED00 £000
29 Fees payable to Grant Thomion with regasd to 28

external audi sarvices carriad owl by the appointad
auditor Tor the year

29 20
NOTE 26

Grant income

The Waste Ecosmast Grant has yel to be tully recogrised as income as there are
conditions attaching that will require the money to be refunded ta the gver. The
balance at the vear-end is as Tollows:

HEME

£000

5§ Wasie Co Eco Smart Spand B
Cradited to Services

(13}  Waste Eco Smart (8]

() 0

@D
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MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

Authority credited the foliowing grants to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2016/17,

MNOTE 27
Related parties

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties -
bodies or individuals - that have the potential to control or Influence the
Authaority or to be controlled or influenced by the Autharity. Disclosure of these
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Authority might
haye been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have
securad the ability te limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the
Airthority.

Central government

Central government has effective control aver the general operations of the
Authority- It is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which
the Authority operates. Details of transactions with Government Departments
are set out in the Notes refating to the Cash Flow Statement.
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Members

Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority's linancial and
operating policies although no Moembers' aflowances are payabie.

Councillors Concepcion, Robertson-Collins and Cluskey are Mambers of the
Authority and are also Directars of Mersey Waste Holdings Ltd. Counciliors S
Will:ams and A& Cunliffe are Mambers of the Authority are Directors of Bldston
Methane Ld. They take no part at the Authorily meetings about the bodees that
thiy Serve on.

CHficers

Three officers {Carl Beer, Afax Murray and Peter Williams) are also Directors of
Mersey Waste Holdings Lt and the compamy’s two subsadiary companies {detail
provided balow],

They take no part at the Authority meetings regarding the badies that they serve
an

Other Public Bodies

A5 part of the discharge of its waste disposal functions within the Merseyside
ared, the Authority makes a number of payments covering rent, business rates
and recycling payments 1o other local authorities in the area, which are
summarized below.

ST e e e Wl Srenieir
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2MEME  Paymants HHENT

£o00

2,111  Halton 1,965
B4 Knowsley 581
1,332  Liverpool 1.475
1,305 51 Halens 1.363
2,139 Sehon 1418
948 Wiral a71
8,450 7.683

Entities Controlied or Significantly influenced by the Authority
Mersey Waste Holdings Limited {MWHL)

Thiz company is a former Local Authority Waste Disposal Company [LAWDC),
now used by the Autharity solely to access the remaining landfill contracts, The
pension liabilities of farmer empleyees are also managed through the company
Fat 2016/17 the company's results showed a deficlt of £0.150m (£0.158m in
2015/16) and net assets of £5.041m at 31 March 2017, [£5.041m at 31 March
2015},

The Authority controls MWHL through its ewnership of 100% of the fssued share
capital of 5,138,000 ordinary E1 shares held at cost. MWHL owns two subsidiary
companies, Mersey Waste Limited and MWH Associates Limited, over which the
Authority also exercises effective control as a result of its relationship with
Mersey Waste Holdings Limited,
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The Authority made payments of £23.032m to MWHL during the year (£26.223m
in 2015/16).

Bldston Methang Limbed

Bidston Methane Limited is a joing venture established to manage gas production
and electricity generation from closed landfill sites which remain the
responsibility of the Authority. The joint venture is with Infinis Energy ple and the
Authority controls Bidston Methane through its ownership of 50% of the ssyed
share capital which is hebd at cast, The most up 1o date avdited financial
information shows a profit of £0.043m for 2015/16 and net liabillties of £0.340m
at 31 March 2016,

Thera were no transactions with Bidsten Methane Litd duting the vear [nil in
2015116}

(MRWA
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NOTE 28
Capital expenditure and financing

The-total ameunt of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table
below (induding the value of assets acquired under finance leases and the Waste
Management and Recycling serviee concession contract), together with the
resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is 1o be
financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the
Authority, the expenditure results is an iIncrease in the Capital Financing
Regquirement (CFR}, a measure of the capital expenditure incurred histarically by
the Autharity that has yet to be financed. The CFR is znakysed in the second part
of this Mote,
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201518

1,753
215
1,968

Copital Experditure and  Flrancing

Capital expenditure incurred in the year

Proparty, Plani and Equipmient 14
Closed landfil sites 1]

14
Financing

Ciranls and contributions fecaivable in retation to
capital expendiiung incumed in the year
Diract revense confributions: [14)

Capital receipts

increase in underiying borrowing requirement
Supported borrowing approvals

Unsupported borrowing for the year

Sources of finance
Supported bormyweng aporovats
Unsupported boerowing

Increase in Capital Financing Reguirement E
relating to new capital investment

0
o
0
T
0
0

El.pl.lll.nlill!-rl ol movamenis in the Caplial

: BT
Financing Reguiroment i the yoar an;

EDO0

(MRWA

BERP i BV vk W LT e e
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55804 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 49,348
0 Restabement i
55,804 Restated opening Capital Financing 49,348
Reguirement
(3.138) Decresse In Capllal Financing Requirement [+
refaling fo new capital investment
0 Capitsl Receipts set aside for repayment of debt H
{1,318} Chargas bo revenoe for Minimum Revenue {1,154)
Provis
‘-'ﬂ. Closing Capltal Financing Requirement 48,154
MNOTE 29
Leases

Authority as lessor - operating leases

The Autherity leases out property, plant end equipment for the follawing
purposes:

& prvironment and planning - use af closed bandfill sites
&  household waste recycling centres
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However these are at peppercorn rent so not included in this Note. The minimum fease payments due under non-cancellzble operating leases in
future years are:

Authaorlty as lessee — operating leases

The Authority has acquired 14 assets by entering into operating leases with

HIENE SDT8FT
tvpical lives of between 2 years and 30 years.

Land and Lared e
The expenditure charged 1o services in the Comprehensive ncome and bulldings Bpilelivgm

Expenditure Statement during the year 1o leases was

£D00 £000
148 Minimum lease payments 148

2015ME

€009

148 No later than one year 148 No sub-lease payments or contingent rent payments were made or received, No
473 Later than one year and not l=ter than five years BTG Sublease income is expected as all assets held under operating l=ase Bgreements
873  Later than five years. g73 are used exclusively by the Authority

1,885 1,698
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NOTE 30
Service Concassion
Waste management and Recycling Contract

2016/17 was the eighth year of a 20 year Waste Management and Recycling Contract with Veolia. Under the contract Veolia operate the Authority's existing waste facilities
and f5 responsible for building maintain and operating the new Gillmoss Material Recycling Facility [MRE) which came into eperation in December 2011,

The Contract specifies the minimum standards for the services to be provided by the contractor, Vealia, with deductions from the fee payable If facifities are unavallable or
performance is below the standards set out, The eantractor took on the obligation to construct and malntain the Gillmess MRF to a minimum acceptabie condition and to
procure the plant and eguipment needed to operate the MAF. The butlding, plant and equipment installed will transfer to the Authority at the end of the contract petiod
foor il consideration

The Authority has rights to terminate the contract it it compensates the contractor in full for costs incurred and future profits that would have been generated over the
remaining term of the contract

Property, plant and equipment

The assets used to prowide seTvices at the Materials Recycling Facility are recognised on the Authersity's Balance Sheet, Movements in their value aver the vear are detailed
in the analysis of the movement on the Property, Plant and Equipment at Note 10
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Payments

Tolal at Paynvent
INRNEF0TT Imimresi

Total mt
IV0320NT

Enan 1 0o

27,803 Payabde within BE1 T2 1 .:
ane year s
121,870 Payabla within 3,843 e B, 105
b o fiv
YEars
172,455 Payable within 4,804 1.511 B
5ix to ten years
B2.400 Payable within 2.082 157 29
sleven 1o fifleen
YEEME
Total
404,366 11,680 4582 16,372

The Authority makes an agreed payment each year which is increased each
year by inflation and can be reduced if the contractor fails to meat
availability and performance standards in any year But which is athereise
fixed. Payments remaining to be made under the service concession
contract at 31 March 2017 [excluding any estimation of inflation and
availability/performance deductions) are as follow

@D
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The contract payments have been calculated to compensate the contractor
for the fair value of the services they provide, the capltal expenditure
incurred and interest payvable on the capital expenditure still to be
reimbursed to the contractor. The liability outstanding to pay the
contractor for capital expenditure incurred is as follows:

Liabilities

The contract payments have been caloulated 1o compensate the contractor
lor the fair value of the services they provide, the capital expenditure
incurred and Interest payable on the capital expenditure still be reimbursed
to the contractor, The liability outstanding to pay the contractor for capital
expenditure ncurred is as follaws

201818

ZMeny
EO0QD £000

12,610 Ealanoe outstanding at stan of year 12,848
{861)  Payments during the year (861)
12,848 Balance outstanding at year-end 11,888
Analysed betwesn:
(861) Paymentz due within 1 yaar (&)
(10,727}  Long lesm liabiltes (10,727}
.68 a
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NOTE 31
Defined berefit pension schemes

A5 part of the térms and conditions of emplovment of its officers, the
Authonity makes confributions tovwards the cost of retirement benefits.
Although these benefits will nor actually be payable until employvess retire,
the Authority has a commitment to make the payments [for those benefits)
and to disclose them at the time that employees earn thair future
entitlement.

The Authority participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme |LGRS)
which 15 administered locally by Wirral Council [the Merseyside Pension
Fund). The LGPS isa funded defined benafit scheme, meaning that the
Authority and emmployees pay contributions into & fund, calculated at a
level intended to balance the pension’s Fabilities with investment assers,
The LGPS provides defined benefits with its. benefit structure having been
revised recently by the Government, Members will have final salary
benefits for service accrued prior to 1 April 2014 with career average
revalued earnings ["CARE") benelits accruing from this date.

The Merseyside Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framework
for the Local Government Pansion Scheme, The governance of the scherme
Is the responsibility of the Pensions Commitiees consisting of members from
the five Merseyside authorities and one member representing other
employing organisations in the Fund. Policy 15 determined in accordance
with the LGPS regulatmons.

MRWA

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

The principal risks 1o the Authority refate to the impact of changes to
longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme, structural changes
to the scheme (eg large scale withdrawals from the schemel, thanges to
inflation, bond yields and the performance of equity investments held by
thi scheme. Merseyside Pension Fund has reported that the principal risk
to Its funding position is the investment risk inherent in its predominantly
equity based strategy, &5 actual asset autperformance between successive
valuations could diverge from the overall 1.4% per annum assumed in the
lomger term,

Transactions relating to retirement benefits- CIES Charges

The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported
cost of service when they are earned by emaloyess, rather than when the
benefits are eventually paid as pensions.

However, the charge we are required to make against the Levy is based on
the cash payable in the year, and the real cast of post-employment,
retirement benefits i reversed out of the Senecal Fund via the Movement
on Reserves iatement, The following transactions have beer made in the
Cemprehensive income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund
balance via the Movement In Reserves Statement during the year:
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Comprennmsive
Lngame wiel

Exponditum Statamoent

Loslof senvices

Service cost comprsing:
Currenl serviee cos
Past service cost
{Gamnitioss from

settiements

Financing and

Irvastment Income and

Expendifurs:

Mal Interest axpenae

Toial post-
employment benafits
charged to the Surplus
of Deficit on the
Provision of Sarvices
Remeasuremant of the
thee net defined banefit
liability comprsing:
Relwrn on plan assets
(Exciuding tha amount
Inchuded in the net
(nierest expanss)
Actuarial gains and
lpsses arisng on
changes in demograghic
assumpkons

FEFP e E PP me b WalT) B e 1

Local Gavarnmiant
Penaion Scheme
TSME FaMNT

Eooo £000

Discretionary Banefits

ranel-"gl ] 2018HT
£404 E000

230 234 0 0
o Q 0 8]
g 0 a o
a Q 7] 1]
128 130 & 7
ae7 381 -] 7
205 (1,848 o o
o (216) 0 {4}

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

Aciuarial gains and (801} 3627
losses sriging on
changes. i financial
Bssumptions

Cthae 0 {1,036

{n 28

1] 3

Total post

employment benefits

charged to the

Comprohensive

Income and -
Expenditure Statement ft3s) §TS

1} a4

Pension Assets and Liabilities recognised In the Balance Sheet

Local Govarmmant Peiwslon
Schmme

JD1BNE 2DiRNMT

CED0 £ 0

Dmcrmiionary Bonofita

2MEME IMEMNT

DGO

FPresant vahig of (ha 14,7388 (17,453
sl I i 1 (191 (208)
Fair value of plan 10080 12957 a 0
aszels =

(3.748)  [4,498) [181) {208}
Qther movarments in
this Eability {assat)
Net liability
hoislprebis Sty ATes)  [44ss) (181)  io8)
banefit obligation
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Reconclliation of present value of the scheme Habilities

Reconcillation of movements in the fair value of scheme assets

Lozal Govermmant Penaion
Srhirmie

Discrelionary Banefits

Local Govermmont
Penalon Schermg

01816 21EN7T JHTAME J018HT

FO00 oo E£000 L000

Discretionary Benefris

20156 I0M1RAT J015ME  J016MT

Upsning fair valoe of 11,810 10,880 [i] 0
scheme astels
Interes! on plan assets A55 380 0 i) £000 E0OO E000 EO00
Remeasurements {280 1,853 0 o
{asseta)
Administration {5) (5) ] 0
A ' Intesest cost 48 1
Empdoyer contributions . 134 128 14 i Tl M = =9 (E10) 8} W}
Member contributions 72 73 0 o mbar contibusons (72) (73) 0 o
Bengfitzitransters paid Eﬂm 457 {18} {1_'2_ Past senace o o 0 o
Closing value of £ ﬁ# 5 [ costs/igains}
scheme assets Remoasuremants d a ] 0
(lhabilities)
Experience {gainjoss a 1,034 e 3}
{Gainjlcss an financisl B (38T 7 {28)
assumplions
iGainioss on 0 218 o L
dembgraphic
assumphans
Bunefitsfransfers paid 90 482 18 17
Balance as at 31 T (AT (iTash i) (208
Ilhdl‘ L -
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Local government pension scheme assets comprisoed: Basis for estimating assets and labiftles

Lisbilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projecied unit
methad, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in the future years

Fair valua of achemo ansets

FHNVINE I T dependent on assumptions aboul mortality rates, salary levels, etc.
EDDO y 00
77 Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits
J hpiokea 1318 10 4252 13 lliabilities have been assessed by Mercer Human Resaurce Consulting Lid, an
‘ independent firm of actuaries, estimates for Merseyside Pension Fund
i i ;
. 1748 it rpas 18 being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 1 April 2015
- unguated Q a 0 0 The significant assumptions used by the actuary are set cut below:
B y - quoted 45 o ) 0 Local Government ;EE:::
- unguased B34 B am 7 201516
H.H:EH‘I-EH'I-I'EB - E?E 3 2‘59 2 “ﬂﬂ'i"w mmnm:
guoted Longewity at B5 curent pensioners:
. LT 17 2282 18 2928 Man 29,0
unquoted 26.4  Women 24 7
Cash - guoted ava 3 441 3 Longevity at 65 for future
o 00 aew e
i I 12887 100 248 Men 2d g
28.2  Women axT
Financial assumptions:
20 Fete of TP inBation 2.3
25 Rate of increass i salates 3.8
20 Rate of increass in pensions 2.3
35 Digscount Rate 2.5
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Imipact on the Defined Benafit Obligation in the Scheme

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial
assumptions se1 out in the table above The sensitivity anakyses balow have
been determined based on reasonably possible changes to the assumptions
pccurring at the end of the roporting perlod and assumes for each change
that the assumption anakyies changes while all other assumgtions remain
constant.

For example, the longevity assumptions assume that life expectancy
Increases of decreases for men and wamen. |n practice this s unlikely to
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated,

The estimations in the sensitivity analysls have followed the accounting
policies for the scheme, L2 on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method, The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis below did not change from those wsed in the previous
period,

IncTRana i

aunumplion
£000
(293) Longevity (increase of one year)
(265) Rate of infistion (increase of 0.1%)
(B5) Rate of increase In safarles (increase of 1%)
280 Hate for discounting llabiffhes (ncrease of D.1%)

D reams in
AU

EO0D
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Impact on the Authority's cashflows

The ohjectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as
censlant a rate as possible. Merseyside Pension Fund has agreed a strategy
with the scheme’s actuary to schiove a funding level of 100% over the next
18 ysars, Funding jevels are monitored on an annual basis. The fatast
iriennial valuation was completed on 31 March 2016,

The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the
scheme under the Public Pensions Services Act 2013, Under the Act, the
Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wates and the other
main exsting public service schemes may not provide benefits in relation to
service after 31 March 2014 (or service after 31 March 2015 for other mamn
existing public service pension schemes n England and Wales), The Act
provides for scheme regulations to be made within a comman framework,
to establish new career average revaiued earnings schemes to pay pensions
and other benefits to certain public servants.

The Authority anticipates to pay £0.124m contribiutions to the scheme in
2016f2017

NOTE 32
Contingent liabilities

The Authority has a 50% stake in Bidston Methane Ltd. Currently the
Company i Funning at a loss and the Authority's share of the loss is
E170,000 as at 31 March 2016 based an the latest available accounts to 31
March 2015. The Authority has given & commitment to support the
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company linancially; hence it remains valued as a going concern, The
Authority therefore recognises that It has a contingent liability for its share
of the paténtial lass

MOTE 33

Contingent assets

On 23rd Gecember 2013 The Authority entered into a contract with Sita
sembcorp UK (S5UK] Ltd for 30 years: The contract provides for a profit
share arizing from electricity generated from the contract, however, the
value of the potential income from the future profit share cannot be
accurately projected untll nearer the time the contract enters s
operational phase as waste fiows and electricity markets and prices are very
likely to change.

NOTE 34
Other long term liabilities

2015816 Moo 201817
Eoon i)
(3.840) Pensions labedy k1] (4,704)
(2.150) Merseyside MCC residual debt lishifity 33 {1,933)
{12.545) Senace Concession Liability b (11 Ba8)
(18,739 (18,328)
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Deferred Liabiiities — Merseyside Residual Debt Fund

These are liabilithes relating to the Authority's share of debt arising from the
former Merseyside Council and which are payabie over time:

2018M &

L0000

{£,363] Balance b
216 Repayments in year 217

35 Events after the reporting period

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for lssue by the Director of
Finanice TBA. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the
fimancial statements or Notes. Where events taking place before this date
provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2017, the
figures in the financial staterments and Notes would be adjusted in all
matenal respects to reflact the impact of this infarmation,

There are no post balance sheet events that would have the effect of
altering the Authority's financial performance.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the
Authority's transactions for the 2016,/17 financial
year and its position at the year end of 31 March
2017, The Authority is required to prepare an
annual Staterment of Accounts by the Accounts and
Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which reguire i1
to be prepared in accordance with proper
accounting practices. These practices comprise the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the Lnited Kingdom 2016/17 and the Serice
Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17, supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards { IFAS)
and statutery guldance ssued under section 12 of
the Local Gavernment Act 2003,

The dccounting convention adopted in the
Statement of Accounts is principalty historical cost,
madified by the revaluation of certain categories
of non-current assets and financial instruments.

The accounts have been prapared on the basis of
the Authority's assessment that it is a going
concem and will contine 1o B & going concern
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feer a further twelve months from the date the
accounts are approved by the Authority

Summiary of Significant Accounting Policies
il Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the vear that It takes
piace, not simply when cash payments are made or
received. In parthoular:

» revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the Authority transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the
purchaser and it is probable that econamic
benefits or service potential associsted with
the transaction will flow to the Autharity;

*  revenue from the provision of services 15
recogriised when the Autharty can measure
refiably the percentage of completion of the
transaction and it is probakle that economic
benefits or service potential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Autharity;

# supplies are recorded as expenditure when
they are canfumed - where there is a gap
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between the date supplies are received and
their consumption, they are carried as
imventaries on the Balance Sheet,

& Lovies received from the constituent
autharities are recognised (o the year to which
they relate 3nd are credited to the surpius /
deficit on the provision of services

*  eupenses in refation to services recelved
{including services pravided by employess) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are
received rather than when payments are
made;

* where revenue and expenditure have been
recognised but cash has not been received or
pald, o debtor or creditor for the relevant
amount 4 recorded in the Balance Sheet,
Where debis may not be settled, the balance
of debtors & written down and a charge made
e revenue for the income that might not be
codlected.

i} Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash i reprasented by cashin hand and deposits
with financlal institutions repavale without
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penalty on notice of not mare than 24 hours. Cash
equivalents are Investrments that mature 0 no
miore than three manths or less from the date of
acquisition and that are readily convertible ta
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value

Im thie Cash Flow Staterment, cash and cash
equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Authority's cash management.

HE) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in
Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustmsants may anse as 2 result of a
change in accounting policies or o correct a
miaterial erfor. Changes in accounting estimates
are accounted far prospectively, i.e., in the current
and future years affected by the change and do
not give rise 1o & prior peried adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made
wien required by proper accounting practices or
the change provides mare relinkde ar relavant
information about the effect of transactions, other
events and conditions on the Authority’s financial
position or financial performance, Where a

D
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change is made, it Is applied rawospectively (uniess
stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances -
and comparative amounts for the prior period as |f
the new palicy had always been appiied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures
are cofrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances snd comparative amaunts for the prins
perind

iv) Charges for Man-Current Assets

Services are debited with the following amounts to
record the cost of holding fixed assets during the
yEar:

* depreciation attributable to the assets
used by the relevant service;

* revaluation and impairment lesses on
ascels used by the service wheare there
#rd nd accumulated galng in the
Fevaluation Reserve against which the
losses can be written off;

*  amortisation of intangible fived assets
piiributable tothe service

Minimum Revenue Provision
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The Authority ks required to make an annual
contribution from révenue towards the reduction
Iy its overall borrowing requirement lequal to
elther an amount calculated on a prudent basis
determined by the Authority in accordance with
statutory puidance. Depreciation, revaluation and
Impalrment lasses and amartisations zre thergfarn
feplaced by the minimum revenue provision (MRP)
in the General Fund Balance, by way of an
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment
Account In the Movement in Reserves Statement
for the difference between the two.

v} Employee Benefits
Benafits Payable during Employment

AN actrual is made to represent the cost of holiday
entitiement earned but not taken at each year-
end, 1o meel Code and 145 reguirements,

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are ampunts payahle as a
result of a decision by the Autharity to terminate
an officer's employment before the nermal
retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those
benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to
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the Mon Gstributed Costs line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement when the Authority s démonstrably
committed to the termination of the employment
of an officer or group of officars or making an offer
L encourage voluntarny redundancy.

Where termination benefits invalve the
enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
reguire the General Fund balance to be charged
with the amount payable by the Authority [o the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the
amount calcubsted scoording to the relevant
accounting standards, In the Movement In
Reserves Statement, appropriations are required
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
nothonal debits and credits for pensian
enhangement termination benefits and repiace
bherm with debits for the cash paid to the pension
fund and pensioners and ary such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end,

Post-Employment Benefits

Employees of the Authority are eligible 1o join the
Local Government Pension Scheme, adminisierad
by Wirral Metropalitan Borough Council as the

L Sesvo sk T Ty

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

pension tund administering authority for
Merseyside Pension Fumd.

Statement. The assumptions used in determining
pension costs are as foflows:

Thescheme provides defined benefits to members
[retirement lump sums and pensionsheamed a5
employess of the Authority

Full details of Merseyzide Pension Fund including
the Pension Fund Annual Report and Statement of
fccounts ¢an be obtained from:

Merseyiade Pension Fund
Tth Flogr

Castle Chambers

43 Castie Sires1
LIVERPOOL

LES ZMNW

www.merseyeldepentionynd o uk

Fension costs for those employees wha ane
members of the LGPS, have been recognised In the
itatement of accounts an o defined benefits basis
in accordance with 1A519 Emploves Benefits. This
reguires the Autharity Yo account for its share of
the pension fund asseis and habdlities m the
Balance Sheet, as well as recognising the full cost
of prowiding for future retirement benefits in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

the liabilities of the Merseyside Penslon Fund
attributable to the Authority are incfuded in
the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using
thi projected onit method —i.e. an
gssesament of the future payments that will
be made in relation to retirement benefits
earned to date by employees, based on
assumptions about martality rates, employes
turnover rates, #te, and projections of
projected earnings for current emplayees

liabilities are discounted to their value at
current prices, osing a discount rate based on
actual corporate bond yvield less an
assumptlon for inflation,

The assets of Merseyside Pension Fund
altriburtable to the suthority are induded in
the Balance Sheet al their fair valus:

o gubbed securities — current bid
price

o unguoted securities -
professional estimate
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o unitised securities — current bid

prece

o property — madket value.

#  The change in the net pensions liability ks
analysed into the following components:

o Service cost comprising:

D,
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culrent service cost -
the increase I liabilities
&5-a result of years of
service earnad this year
- gllocated in the
Comprahensmve Income
and Expenditure
Staterment to the
services for which the
employees worked;

past service cost — the
increase i lakilites
arising from current
year decisions whose
effect relates to years of
spryice earned in earlier
yieaids — debrited to the

Surpius or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in
the Comprehsnsive
Income and Expendifure
Statement as part of
Mon Distributed Costs

nat infeéresl an the net
defined benefit Hability
Le. net interest éxpense
far the Authority - the
changes during the
period |n the net
defined benefit lability
that arises from the
passage of time charged
1o the Financing and
Investment income and
Expenditure line of the
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Statement - this is
calculated by apphying
the discount rate used
to mizaiyre the defined
benafit obligation at the
beginning of the period -
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taking into account any
changes in the net
defined benefit lability
during the period as a
result of contribution
and banefit payments.

o Remeasurements comprising:

thenel return on plan
assets - entluding
amounts ingluded in net
interest on the net
defined benafit llability -
charged to the Pensions
Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

actuarial gakns and
losses - changes in the
net pensions linbility
that arise because
events have not
coincided with
assumplions made at
the last actuarial
valuation or becavse the
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actuaries have updated
thair assumptions -
charged to the Penslons
Reterve g5 Other
Camprohansive income
and Expenditure

< Conatributions paid to Merssyside
Fension Fund - cash paid as
emplayer's contributions to the
pension fund mosettlement of
liabifitles, not accounted for as
21 EXperse,

Statutory provisions limit the Autharity Lo raisng
ks Levy to cover the ampunts actually payable 1o
Merseyside Pension Fund or payable direct tao
pemsioners in the webr, not the amount celoulated
according to the relevant accounting standards.

Therefore any difference besween the amounts
calculated under 15519 and the statutory pension
fund contribution is accounted for in the
Movement in Reserves via a transfer to and from
the Pensions Reserve, In this manner the notional
debits and credits for retirement benefits are
removed and replaced with debits for the cash
actually paid to the pansion fund snd pensioners

MRWA
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and any such amounts pavable but unpaid at the
year-end. The negate balance that arises on the
Pansions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial
impact to the General Fund of baing required 1o
account for retirement benefits on the basis of
cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by
employees.

The Fund is subject to actuarial revaluation every
three years with the latest valuation being that as
at 31 March 2016

wi) Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are those
events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
pccur bebween the end of the reporting period and
the date when the Statement of Sccounts is
authorized for issue. Two tvpes of events can be
idantified:

#  those that provide evigence of conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting
peried — the Statement of Accounts i5
adjusted to reflect such events;

¢ those that are mdicative of conditions
that arose after the reporting period — the
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Staternent of Accounts s not adjusted to
reflect such events, but where a category
of events would have & material effect,
disclosure 15 made in the Notes of the
nature of the events and their estimated
finantial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation
far Issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts,

wii) Financlal Instruments
Financial Linbilities

Financial lakilities are recognised an the Balance
Shest when thi Authority becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of 3 fmancial Instrument
and are Initially measured at fair value and are
carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to
the Financing and Investment lncome and
Expenditure fine in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for interest payable are
based on the carrying amount of the liability,
multipdied by the effective rate of interest for the
imstrument, The effective interest rate i the rate
that exactly discounts estimated foture cash
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payments over the life of the instrument to the
amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the Authaority's borrowings, this means
that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is
the outstanding principal repayable; and interest
charged to the Comprehendive Income and
Expendilure Statement is the amount pavabie for
the year according to the ioan agreemont

Financlal Agsety
Financlal assets are classified Inta two types:

= loansand recelvables — assets that have
fixed or determinable payments but are
not quoted In an active market

= available-for-sale assets — asseds that hawe
a gquoted market price and/or dea not have
fixed or determinable payments

Loans and Recelvables

Loans and recevables are recognised on the
Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial
Instrusment and are initially measured at-fzir valus.
Thay are subsequently measured at their
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armartised cost. Annual credits to the Financing
and investment income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensve income and Expendiiure
Statement for Interest recelvable are based on the
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument,

Whiere assets are identified as impaired becacse of
& Ekelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the contract will not be
made, the asset is-written down and a charge
made 1o the relevant service (for receivables
specific 1o that service] or the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditurs ling in the
Comprehensive Incame and Expenditure
Statement, The impalrment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of the revised future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s origingl effective interest
rate,

Any gains and fosses that arise on the
derecognition of an asset are credited or debited
to the Finanding and Investment ncome and
Expenditure line in the Comprebenshve Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Avalizble-for-sale assets
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In line with the Code, the Authority's interests in
Mersevwaste Holdings Ltd and Bideton Methane
Lid are nol classed as Available for Sale assets,
because they are consolidated inte the Authority's
Eroup accaunts.

wii] Interests In Companies and Other
Entities

The Authority has malerial interests in companies
that have the nature of subsidiaries and jointly
contrelled entities and require it to prepare group
accounts, In the Autharity's own single-entity
accounts, the inberests in companies are recorded
as financial assets at cost, less any provision for
loszes.

ix) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
property, plant ar equipment from the lessor to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Where a lease covers both land and buddmgs, the
land and bulidings elemenis are considered
separately for dassification,

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of
a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return
far payment are accounted for under this palicy
where lullilment of the arrangement is dependent
ofi the use of specific assets

The Authority as Lesses

Finance Leases

The Authority has ne finance Ipases,
Dperating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 32 an expense of the services
benefitting from use of the leased property, plant
or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-linge
basis over the life of the ease, even if this does not
match the pattern of payments (¢g, there is a rent-
free period at the commencement of the lease).

The Authority as Lessor
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The Authority has no arrangements which fall into
this category.

x) Property, Plant and Equipment

AsSEDS that have physical substance and are heid
for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, for rental to others, or for administrative
purposes.and that are expected to be used during
more than one financlal vear are dassified as
PFroperty, Plant and Eguipment.

Recognitlon

Expenditure on the acguisition, creation of
enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
cepitalized on an actruals basis, provided that it is
probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential assockated with the item will flow
£ the Authority and the cost of the item can he
rmeasufed refiably. Expenditure that maintains but
does not add to an asset's potential to deliver
future econamic benefits or service potential [ie,
repairs and maintenance) ks charged as an expense
wihen it ks incurred

Measurament

Assels are initlally measured at cost, comprising:
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*  the purchase price

*  any costs atinbutable to bringing the
asset bo the focation and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management

The Autharity does not capitalise borrowing casts
incurred whilst assets are under construction,

Aszets are carried in the balance sheet using the
following bases:

» assets under constructian - depreclated
historical cost

*  all other assets - fair value, at existing use
[ELIV)

Whare there is no market-based evidence of fair
vaiue because of the specialist nature of an asset,
depreclated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an
estimate of fair value:

Wherne nan-property assets that have short wseful
lives-or low values {or both), depreciated historical
cost basis 8 used as & proxy for falr value.
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It should be noted that the envircnmental
condition of dosed landfill sites makes them
unmarketzble arid & nominal value of £1 is
attributed to them,

Assets Included in the Balance Sheet at fair value
are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that
their carrying amount is not materially different
froom their fair value at the year-eénd, bul as a
minimum évery five years. Increases in valuations
are matched by credits to the Revaluation Resere
to recagnise unrealised gains.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains
recognised sice 1 Aprif 2000 only, the date of its
formal Implementation. Gains arlsing before that
date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether
there is.any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications pxist and any possible
diffésences are estimated (o be material, the
recavvirabde amount of the asset s estimated and,
where thiz is less than the carrying amount of [he
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assel, an impairment lass s recognised for the
shartfail,

Whare impairment losses are identified, they are
accounbed lor by:

= where there & a balance of revaluation
gains for the assot in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying ameunt of the asset
15 written down against that balance [up
to the amount of the accumulated gains);

= where there is no balance in the
Revialuation Reserve or an insufficient
balance, the carrying amount of the asset
& writhen down against the relevant
service line{s) in the Comprehensive
income and Expenditure Statement

Where an impairment loss is reversed
subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
refevant sarvice ling(s] in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the
amaunt of the original loss, adjusted far
depreciation that would have been charged if the
loss had not been recognised,

Depreciation
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Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant
and Equipment by systematically aflocating
deprociation over thedr useful fives. An exception
is made for assets without a determinable finlte
useful life fe.g. freehold land) and assets that are
not yet avallable for use (e assets under
construction,

Deprecation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over the useful life of the assets,

Where an item of Propenty, Pant and Equipment
asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item,
the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciatad, with an
amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the
depreciation that would have been chargeable
based on thelr historical cost being transferred
each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the
Cupital Adjustment Account,

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying
amaount of an asset will be recovered principally
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through a sale transactson rather than through its
continuing vse, It is reclassitied as an Asset Held
for safe, The asset is revalued immediately before
reclassification and then carred at the lower of
this amount and far value less costs to sell. Where
there is a subsequent decrease 1o fair vilue less
costs tosell, the loss is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprahensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Galns in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any
previoushy losses recognised in the Surplus or
Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is
not charged on Assets Held far Sate,

IF assets no fonger meet the criteria to be dassified
as Assets Held far 5ake, they are reclassified back
to non-current assets and valugd al the lower of
their carrying amaount before they were classified
s held for sale; adjusted for depreciation,
amartisation or revaluations that would have beon
recognised had they not been dassified as Held for
Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of
the decision not to sell,

Asgity that are to be abandoned or scrapped are
not reciassified as Assets Held for Sale.

Amounts received for a disposal i excess of
E10,000 are statutorily defined as capital receipts,
and are credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve.
These amounts can only be used for new capital
investment or st astde to reduoce the Autharity's
underlying need to borrow, Receipts are
appropriated to the Réserve from the General
Furid Balance im the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

The written-off value of disposats is fully provided
tor under separate arrangements for capital
financing. Amounts are agprogriated 1o the
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

i} Service Concession Arrangements

Service concession arrangements (formerly classed
a5 PRl and simitar contracts) are contractual
arrangements between the Authority and an
operator where responsibility for providing public
services, using assets provided elther by the
cperator or the Authority, passes to the operatar
for a specified period of tima. As the Authority is
deemed to control the services that are provided
under its service concession contract, and as
ownership of the property, plant and eguipment
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will pass to the Authority at the end of the contract
for no additicnal charge, the Authority carries the
assels used under the contract on its Balance
Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The ariginal recognition of these assets at fair
value (based on the cost to purchase the property,
plant and equipment| was balanced by the
recognithon of a Hability for amounts due 1o the
scheme operator Lo pay for the capital investment
for those assets provided by the operator under
the service concession arrangement. For the
Gilimoss Material Recyeling Facility recognised
under the Waste Management Recycling Contract.

Mon-current assets recognised on the Balanoe
sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same
Way as property, plant and equipment owned by
the Authority

The amounts payable to the service concessian
operatar each year ang dnalysed into five
elements;

*  fair value of the services received during
the year — debited to the relevant service
in the Comprehensve Income and
Expenditure Statemani
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» fipance cost —an interest charge on the
outstanding Balance Sheet Hability,
debited 1o the Financing and Invest ment
Income and Expenditure lina In the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure
Staterment

#  payment lowards fability - apphed to
write down the Balance Shest liability
towards the service concessicn operator
(the profile of write-downs s calculated
using the same principles as for a finance
lease)

# lifecycle replacement costs = progartion
of the amounts payable is posted to the
Balance Sheet 43 2 prepayment and then
recognised as additiens 1o Property, Plant
and Equipment when the relevant works
are aventually carrled out

wil) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assats

Prowitions

Provitions are made where an event has taken
place that ghvies the Authority a legal or
constructive obligation that probably reguires
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settiement by a transfer of e¢enomic benefits or
service potlential, and a refiable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation, Far
instance, the Authority may be involved in a court
case that could eventually result in the making of a
settlerment or the payment of compensation.

Prowvishons are chargied as an expense 1o the
appropriate service fline in the Comprehensive
Intome and Expenditure Statement in the year
thal the Authority Becomes aware of the
obligation, and are measured at the best estimate
at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation, taking inte
account redevant risks and uncertainties,

When payments are eventually made, they are
chargied (o the provision carried |n the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the
end of each linancial year = whare it becpmes legs
than probable that a transfer of econamic benefizy
will now be required (or @ lower settiement than
anticipated s made|, the provision i reversed and
credited back to the relevant sarvice

Where some or all of the payment required to
settle a provision is expected 1o be recovered from
anothér party {eg from an Insurance claim), this is
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only recognised as income for the relevant service
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received if the autharity settles the obligation

Closed landfill sites provision

The Autherity provides for the future ravenue
costs arising from the after care of closed landfill
sites under s statutory obligations. In accordance
with the Code the landfill provision has been
capitalized.

Contingent Liabiiities

& pontingant Fability arlses whers ap event has
taken place that gives the authority a possible
obfigation whose existence will anly be confirmed
by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not whelly within the comtrol of the
Autheority, Contingent liabilities also arise in
clrcumstances where a provision would otherwise
b made but either it is not probable that an
outfllew of resources will be required or the
amaunt af the obligation cannot be measured
rediably,

Contingent liabHities are not recognised in the
Bzlance Sheet bul disclosed in a Note 1o the
ACCOUNtS,
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Contingent Assets

A coningent assel arises where an event has taken
place that gives the Autharity a possible asset
whosze existence will only be confirmed by the
oocurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events
nat whally within the control of the Autharity

Contingent assets are not recognised in the
Balance Sheet but disclosed in a Note to the
accounts whers it is probable that there will be an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

wiil) Reserves

The Authority sets aside speofic amounts as
reserves for fulure policy purposes or to cower
contingencies. Reserves are created by
appropriating amounts out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement,
When expenditure to be financed from a resemve s
ircurred, it Is charged to the appropriate service in
that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services in the Comprehansive
Income and Expenditure Statement, The reserve ic
then appropriated back into the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement
to that thera is no net charge against council tax
for the expenditure.

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

Certam reserves are xépt to manage the
stounting processes for non-current assers,
financial instruments, retirement and employes
benefits and go not represent wsable resources for
the Authority, Unusable reserves are not avaitable
for revenue purposes and certain of them can anly
be wsed for specific stalutory purposes,

The purposes and usage of both usable and
unusable reserves are detaided in Notes
BEcompanying the accounte

xiv} VAT

VAT payable s included as an expense only to the
etent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty's
Revenue and Customs, VAT receivable is excluded
from income,
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The purpose of the Group Accounts is 10 provide a picture of Merseyside Recycling and Waste Authority (the statutary waste disposal Authority for Merseyside) and the
group of companies the Authority owns and influences. The Group Accounts show the full extent of the Aurhority’s wider assets and llabilities, While the Group Accounts
are nok primary statemeants, they provide transgarency and enable comparison with other entities that have different corporate structures.

The Group accounts consolidate the main accounting statements for Merseyside Recyching and Waste Authority, Mersey Waste Holdings Limited and Bidston Methane
Limizad.
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Accounting policies for the Group

In comman with many other local suthorities, where appropriate the Authority
uses ditferent forms of service delvery, In some cases it has created separate
companiés with to deliver those serviees. The use of separate companies means
that the Autherity's single entity financial statements on thesr own do not fully
reflect the assets and liabifities or income and expenditure assoclated with all of
Its activities. The aim of the Group Accounts 15 to glve an overall picture of the
activities of the Authority and the resources used to carry out those activities,
The Group Accounts alse provide further information on the material financial
risks and benefits of all entities over which the Autharity exercises controd,
significant mfluence or jeint contred,

The Group Actounts have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in simiiar circumstances: The accounting
policies of the subsidianiés have been aligned with the policies of the Autharity,
far the purposes of Group Accounts, where materially different. Such
adjustments as are necessary to align the Group Accounting policles are made as
consolidation adjustments

To give a full picture of the financial activities of the Authority, Group Atcounts
have been prepared which include those organisations where the Authority's
interest is considered material. This information is still subject to audit by each
organisation’s awn awditor,

accordingly the Group Accounts consalidate the Authority's accounts with the
following subsidiaries:

BT P BT S e y Sl A
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" Piersey Waste Heldings Lid; and
L] Bidston Methane Lid,

The entities have prepared their accounts in line with IFRSS and LK GAAP rather
than the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Aczounting in the United
Kingdom 2016/17 (the Code). However there are no material aress where this
cenflicts with the Authority's accounting policies. Consequently no adjustments
have been required to realign the accounts of the Group entities with thase of
the Authority. The atcounting poficies applied to the Group financial statements
ar corsistent with those set in the single entity statements.

Mersey Waste Holdings limited has been consalidated on a line by line basls as it
i5 @ wholly owned subsidiary of MWDA, Bidston Methane Is consolidated on a
propartionate basis due to MWDA having a 50% stake In the joint venture

Results of subsidiaries

Ky Information on a growp basis has been included alongside the single entity
desclosure Notes for reserves, debtors, creditors, segmental reporting and
defined benefit schemes. The following Notes provide additienal details about
the Authority’s involvermnent in the entitses consolidated to form the Broup
dcceunts
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Mersey Waste Holdings Limited

Mersey Waste Holdings fimited is a former LAWDC (Local Authority Waste
Dispesal Company) that was established to provide waste management services
for the Authority. Since the procurement of services by the Autharity under its
Waste Managemeant and Recycling Contract with Veolia ES a large part of the
activity of the company hat ceased. However the company & still used by the
Authority to access the remalning landfill contracts held by the FCC at the
existing terms, Other responsiilities e g for the pension liabilities of former
employees are alio managed through the company

MWHL is a company incarparated under the terms of the Companies Acts. The
Authority is the sole sharehalder in the company holding £5,138,000 ordinary £1
shares representing 100% of the Issued share capital. Under accounting
standards the Authority has a controlling interest in this company. It Is therefare
Included in the group accounts as a subsidiary

The financial performance of MWHL s summarised below,

Faiglity Iy

000
23032

26,223 Tumover
158 (SurplusyDeficit
B4R Mot Assets 5,041

Girvd)

BN il @ Waitl dicsmrir

T
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Bidston Methane Lid

Bidstone Methane Ltd is a joint venture enterpeise established to Manage gas
production and electricity generation from certain closed landfill sites which
remain the responsibility of the Authority. The joint venture is with INFINIS and
kas in recent years been opeérating at a loss which is reflected In the Eroup
accounts. The accounts of the joint venture are prepared later than those of the
Autharity and so for consolidation purposes the |atest available set of accounts is
used, There Is no material impact on the group accounts from adopting this

approach.

20415 818
£'000 E000
(68)  Tumover {43)
{48)  (SurplusyDefici {33)
203 Not Assats 170

The accounts are availabie fram Infinis Holdings, 151 Floor, 500 Pavillen Drive,
Morthampton Business Park, Northampton NN4 7¥), The accounts are audited By
KPhAG LLP.
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28NS HanT

Exparvchiturs I e Exponditure Incomn
E0OD G £0:0

TH.EZ [B.028) 62,797  Cultural, environmental, regulatary and planning services 76,248 i5.044) 70,304

322 1] A22  Corporate and democratic cane 182 1] 182

1] 0 Mon disfributed costs F] a Q

76,145 |6,028) 70,119 Surplus/Deficit on Continuing Operations 76,430 {5,844} 70,485

0 Other Cperating Expendiune (¥

672 Financing and lnvestmant Income and Expenditure 1.7268

{65,591) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant income {65,591}

{572}  Associales and Joint Venlures accounted for on an equily basis [

4620 Group{Surplus) or Deficll 6,821

{244} Inyear General Fund Adjsutment 0

{4215y Swrplus or defict on revaki:ation of non current assels i}

(70} Revaluation of cloged landfill site provision {18)

{977) Actuarial gamns / kosses on pension assets | lakdliles 573

(6,206} Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure BET

(1,577)  Total Comprehensive Income and Expendiure 778
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The balance sheet shows the assets and llabifities of the Group at the year end, The net assats of the Autharity are malched by two categories af reserves. The first is
useable reserves which can be deployed for any purpose, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of working capital. The second category, un-ussable reserves, is

sef askde in order to meet statutary and accounting requirements.

st March 2016 Noten 118t March 2017
£D00 £000
39543 Property, Plant & Equinment 38,257
0 Investmants in associstes and join! ventures ]
39,583 Long Term Assets (1) 38,258
22 Invanionss 22
1644 Short Term Dabtors 3788
15,731 Cash and Cash Equivalents 3156
1 Current tax assel 0
17398 Current Assets (2) 8,801
{13,248) Short Term Greditors (8.232)
(281) Provisions , [268)
{8 Grants Receipls in Advance ]
(13.528) Cument Lisbdfies (3] {89,488)
(4.297) Provisions (4.024]
117.044) Long Term Borrowing {16.801)
122.858)  Othes Long Term Liabilties (22.028)
{43.999) Long Term Lisbilities (4) {42,952}
(596) MOt Assets (1+2eded) {7.292)
17,851 Mmﬁl MIRS 11,684
(16,447) LUnusabls Reserves (6) MIRS {18.980)
(586) Total Resorves (5+6) (7.282)

@D

Mt Bir o g Rastibeneere
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209516 201817

EQ0D EC00

(4629} Netsurplus or (deficit) on the provision of services [8,821)
(2,871) Adjustment to surphus or deficl on he provision of senices for NeNcash movarments (4.757)
{2y Adjpusl for Rems included in the nit surplus or defict on the provision of services that are Evesiing 1481
and financieg actvilies
4,000 Adjustment for ilems incluged in the net suplus or defcll on the provision of services that are ]
investing and financing activites
{3,442] MNet cash fiows from operating activities {12.560)
(1.670) Met Cash flows from Investing Activities 0
(5,070) Met Cash flows from Financing Activities {15)
110.182) Net Increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents [12.578)
{575 In year sfusiment
26,488 Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the reporiing penod 15,731
15,731 Cash and cash equivaients al the end of the reparting period 3,156
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Autharity Adjusted Ressrves Halancooes

Authority's
Totad Total
c 1 - i = shame af =
2018MT General Fund P Earmarked I-Iﬂull Unusable  Authority auibaldiarion S
Batanos L Resprvns Usahie Rosarvas  Reshirves R Ressrves
Ronorve : Roseryes —— & aswociatos

£040 £000 EDG0 EC0D 000 EDDD {000

Balance at 1 April 2016
Movement in Reserves during the year

Surplus or {deficil) on provision of B.502 0 0 6602 0 5,802 (408) 5,154
senvices e
Dther Comprehensive Expenditure and 538 ] @0} | 518 (16} 8 502
_Income _ o ) -

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and 7140 0 {20] 7,420 (16} 704 {408} 5,888
Ircome =
Adjustments between Group accounts (B98) (55) 0 753) 753 0% T ] 0
and Authanty accounts R
Net Increase | Decrease bofore 6,442 {55} {20) : T35 O [408) LR
Transtors = Sy - TirAl T
Adjustments between accounting
basis & funding under regulatians
Increase | Decrease before Translers 1o 544z 58] T 737 L [408) 5,898
Earmarked Reserves R 3 =
Translers 10 / from Earmarked Reserves (2.445) 0 2,448 0 0 [] i ]
Increase | Decrease in Year 3353 (58] 3ATS P 737 ; —_(408)
Balance at 31 March 2047 {11.6533) [56) 0 7 ; 19,184 - TA486 [204)
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Aarthority Adjusted Reseoryrs Balancos
Authority's

nhare of \donts

Group
Honarve

Total
Total o

201616 LapHs o Auithort
Earmarked Uniaable uthorily  _ esidiaries

Gamomal Furdd Balance Rocaipis Unabilo
Reamive Restrves Reservizs

Enoo E000 ETH0 £000 E000 D £0o0o
_Balance at 1 April 2015 {16.,054) {4181) (20,235 - AEH (2.455) 2174
Movement in Reserves during the

R .
Hitseryns CRNIYER 2 smsccizes

YEar .
Surpiug o (@=hci on provision of 1,508 i g 1,508 g 7,505 [354) 1461
= 1,508 .
ﬂl.:lther Comprehensive Expenditure and (G28) 0 0 {828 (4816 (5748 4000 (1,748
MEIHTE x ]
Total Comprehensive Expenditure a78 ] 0 [ BETY 3T 4.3 [CELD
and Income ok doty s (3,646} ¥
Adjusiments between Group accounts o Q 0 (R 0 ] m T
and Authoriy accounts :r i
¥ﬂ Increase | Decrease before 579 ] 0 ﬁ‘ 4B18) IF%5) 2,655 1,578
Adpusimenis between accounting basis (151} 0 o . w 151 f 0
& funding under reguiations ST N == ? 5
Increase | Decroase before Translers o 478 g o T T 559 (1,578
Earmarked Reserves a el - &
Transiers to | fom Earmarsed i 0 1752 1,752 05 0 ] 9
Rezerves 3
Incresse | Decroase in Year az8 0 KCE [BATT] Wi 2,659 i
Balance at 31 March 2016 [15,828) 0 12,478 [ 18447 39 |204) ﬂ_%_
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Motes to the Group Financlal Statements

1 Froperty, plant and equipment

Mersey Waste Holdings Limited has no Property Plant and Equipment {PPE) and 3 Other Long-Term Liabilities

50 the Group PPE is the same as for the single entity disclosed at Note 3 of the

single entity accounis. 201515 201617
2 Cash & Cash Equivalents E00D £o0D

(4.545] Pension kabiities - Morsey Waste Holdngs Limited {3,702

S [3.940) Pension kabilities - Merseyside Recycing and Waste peren
ED00 Authordy
8217 Cesh held by Subsidiary & Associals 5,226 {2,150) Merseyside MCC residual deti kability (1.833)
7.5%4 Cash held on behall of the parent authority by 5t Helens (5,070) (T2.848) Sendce concession liability (11.688)
MBC " [E2850) Total Other Leng-Term Liabilites (02
- 15TH Total s
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7 Penslons Met Interest expense 128 129 a g

&3 part of the terms and conditions of employment of its qualifying officers and

ather employees the Authority and Mersey Waste Holdings Limited offer Total post-employment benefits 128 129 g8 g
entrance into the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by chorged to the Group Surplus or
Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council. Although retirement benefits will not Deficit on the Provision of Services
actuatly be payable untidl employees ratire the Authority has 2 commitment to
make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn Dther post-employment benefits
their future entitiement.d isclosures in retation to the pension Rabilities of the charged to the Group
Authority are set oul in Note 30 of the simgle entity accounts, Disclosures in Comprehensive Income and
relation to the pension llabdlities of Mersey Waste Holdings Limited are set aut Expenditure Stotement :
below Remeasurement of the the net
z defined benefit liability comprising;
Return on plan assets (axcluding 145 907 67 {113}
the amount included (s the net
LAWDC Pansion Interest expense)
Comprehenuvs Income and LGP hana Actuarial galns and losses arising 0 (648} o 0
Espenditure Statement - ; on changes in demographic
/ OLES . Ef
2015/16 J-u...u 01516 2016/17 Fsumptions
EH) £000 £000 F00 Actuarial gains and losses arising {374} 1255 [Elerd 4315
Costof senwices! on changes in financial assumptions
Othier ¥ 0 22 23
SOrvice cosl comprsing: Total post-employment benefits
Current service gost 0 o 0 g charged to the Group
Past service cost 0 o a o Comprehensive Income and
{Gain)/lass from settlements o 1] o o Expenditure Statement (101 1514 (204} 335
Financing and Investment [ncome
and Expenditure,
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Pensions Assets and Liabilities recognised In the balance sheet
LAWDLE Pandicon
Schema
015718 - J0AEFIT  T0A5/16  2O16F17
£000 £0040 £E000 £000
(128) [128) (9 4

LGPS Local Governmaent Miscrationary

Femulon Scheme Bty

Movemant in Reseres Statement

2015716 M0IE/1Y 2015710 2006717
£ 000 FELE ] L0

Reversal of net charges made to the I

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of zﬁaﬁ:m RIS 2 Wk IRRET TSR e

Services for post-employment

Bnciils tr ae i anEs R tha Fair value of plan-assets 5,700 6,560 1,569 1,841

Code (3.915})  {3,502) n {200)

Actuat amount charged against the Other movements in the liability

general fund balance for pensions [msset)

in the year: Met liability arising from the 3915 (3500 (200)

Employers' contributions payable to 233 242 defined ::Lm q:“.um ' e

schiEme

Retirement benefits pavabile to BS 148

pensoners

Net charge to the General Fund [

Summary 105 114 . 152
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Reconciliation of movement |n the fair value of scheme liabilities

Local Government Dlscretionary

Bension Scheme Benetiits

WAGI6 AGFIT 0IS/16 2016317
£000 D00 ED O

Oipening fair value of scheme 5.924 5,700 1,573 1,560
assets
Interast on plan aweks

Remeasurements {assets)
Emplover contributions
Member contributions
Benefits/transfers paid

Closing value of scheme assets

Reconciliation of present value of scheme labilities

Local Government
Penson Scheme Benalic

Discreblionany

2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17
EO08 £000 {00 £000

Opening balance at 1 April (10,173] (9,615) (1,875) (1,576}
Current service cost a 8] 0 0
Interest cost {308} (319] (62) {56}
tember contributlond 4] a a i
Past service costs/{gains) o | ] 0

MRARWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

Remeasurements iabilities)

Experience {gen)floss a (Bag) {22] f2a)
{Gain}/loss on financlal assumptions a4 1,255 302 {435)
Benefits/transfers paid 492 {473} -] 49
Balance as at 31 March W HEIH [1.578) 2,041
Scheme assets comprised

Local Government pension scheme assets comprised:

Fair value of scheme a4sets
Hs/1E 16T

LGPS LANNI LGS  LAWDC
£000 (Feii] D00

Eguithes - guoted 2,983 393 K 544
Bonds - quoted S06 487 X 54z
Property - unquated 507 o N 0
Cash - quoted 19¢ {32) X 0
Other - quoted 1,140 721 % 755
5700 1,569 x 1881
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53 nfa  Property 0.2 n'a
i 0.5 nfa  Cash / liquidity 0.5 n/a
Basis for estimating assets and labilities 65 nfs Other 28 e
Liabifities have been assessed on an acluarial basis using the projected unit 0.3 n/a_ Expenses deductions 0 n/a
methad, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in the future years 52 Overall expected rate of 151
dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, stc return
The Local Government Pension Scherme habilities have been assesced by Mercer Martality assumptions:
Human Reseurie Consulting Lid, an independent firm of actuarkes, estimates for Langevity at 65 current
herseyside Pension Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme pensioners:
as at 1 April 2013. The LAWDC schame liabilities have been assessed by Hymans 224 205 Men 21.9 23.4
Robertean, iIndependent 2ctuaries, estimates for the LAWDC fund belng based on 253 nfa  Women 24.7 215
the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 1 April 2015,
Longevity at 65 for
The significant assumptions used by the actuary are set out below: future pensioners:
LAWDC LAWDC i el i ks
8.1 a 'Wamen 27 .
LGPS Pemsian LGPS Pension W 2. i
Scheme CheTme Financial assumptions:
2015/16  1015/16 2001617  2015/16 20 3.3 Rate of CPl inflation 23 2.4
" 1 " g 35 2.3 Rate ofincreaze in 18 3.4
Long-term expected salaries
rate of return on assets 2.0 2.4 Rate of increase in i3 2.4
in the scheme: pensians
6.5 nfa Equities 9.7 nfa vt 34 Dnitount fate 23 2.7
22 nfa Government Bonds 0.1 n/a
| nfa Other Bonds 18 nfa
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Accounting policies

Those principles, bases, conventions, ules and
prachces applied by an entily |hat spacify how the
efiectz of Iransactions and ofher events are I be
reflected in the financial si#emants through
recogmisng, selecting measwrement bases for, and
preseniing assels, liabdilies, gaing, losses and
changss in reserves. Accountng polioes do not
include estimation lechnigues

Accruais

An pecounting concepl thal requires income and
expanditure to be recognized as it s eamed or
incirred, mol as monay is received or patd

Actuarial gains and losses

For a defined benehl pension schame, the changes
i actuanal deficts or swrpheses that anse bocauss:

{i} Events have nol coincided willy the actuarizl
assumnplions madea for the lstest vatuation
(experience gamns and losses); or

i} The actuanal assumplions have changed.
Amortisation

The equivalent of depreciation for inanaible fixed
aggeis,

MRWA)

il Ll

Capital charges

Ta reflect the value of Bn asset beng used fo
provide services, a capital charge s made fo the
revenue accounis,

Capital expenditure

Expenditure on e acquistion of a fixed assel or
expanditure which adds to, rather than marely
maintaing, the value of an emsting fred asssel
Capital expenditure i normally lended by loans.
grants, extermnal confribulions. capital recsipts or
throwgh a revenue conjribulion,

Capital receipts

Income recedved by the Authority from the sale of s
capital assets.

Current service cost (pensions)

The increase in the present value of 8 defined
benefit scheme's Eabilities expectad to anze from
employes service in the current pasiod

Curtailment

Fur a defined banefil schieme, an event that reduces
the expeciad years of future service of presant
employees or reduces for a number of emplovess
the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of
their future senmce. Curla#ments include;

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

{n termination of empiovess services éarlier
than axpacted, for exemple as a result of
chaging o discontinuing a segment of
business: and

il terminalion of, or amendment to the erms
of, a gefined baneft scheme so that some
or aif future servica by current employees
will no longer gualify for benalis or will
guadfy oy for reduced bensfils,

Deferred capital receipts

Amounis derived from the sale of aszets, but which
will ba recedved in ingtaiments cver agresd periods
of time, They arise principafly frem morgages an
sabes of councd houses which form the main part of
morgages under long t2rm deblors,

Defined bonefit scheme

A penson or oiher rebirement benefit scheme ofher
than a defined contribubon scheme. Usually, the
scheme rules define the benefits independently of
the contributions payable, and the benefils are not
directly relaled to the investments of the scheme.
The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including
notiorally funded).

Defined contribution scheme

A pension or otfier retrement benefils schame info
which an employer pays regular contributions fixed
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as an amount or a5 & percentage ol pay and will
have na legal or constructive obligation 1o pay
further confributions if the scheme does not have
sufficient assels 1o pay aif emploves banalils
relating 1o employee service in the current and pror
pariods.

Depraciation

The measuwre of the wearing oul. consumption, or
olhet reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset,
whether arising from use, passage of time, or
cisobascence through fechnological or oiher
changes,

Expected rafe of return {on pension assets)

For a funded defined benefit schema the average
rate of refum, including both income and changes in
fair walue buf net of scheme expenses, expected
owr the remaming hife of the related obligation en
the actual asseis held by the scheme

Fair Value

Tha fair value of an asset s the price &l whesh |l
could be exchanged m an arm’s langih transaction,
less, where applicable, any granis receivabls
lowands the purchase or use of the ssset.

@D
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Impairment

& reduction In the value of a8 fiked azset below it
carrying amount an the balance sheet.

Interest costs (ponsions)

For a defined benefit scheme, e expeched
increase during the pefiod in fhe presenf valus of
The gchame [fabilifies because the benefs are one
period cloger o satlament

Het book value

The amaunt & which fixed assets are includad In
the balance aheel, |e, thair historical cost or current
valle kess the cunulalive amount provided for
depreclabon

Net current replacament cost

The cost of replacing or recrealing the particutar
assel in s exisling condition and in its existing use
l.e. the cost of #a replacement or of the nearest
equivalant asset, adjusted 1o reflect tha current
conditicn of the sxdsling asset

Net reslizable valus

The opan market valus of the assel in its existing
use [or open market valug in the case of non-
operalicnal assels), less the expenses o be
incurred in realsing the asset.

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

Mon-operational assets

Fixed assets held by a Local Authority but not
directly eccupied, used or consumed in the defvery
of services, or for the service or strategic objectives
of the Authority. They may compriss -

(i} Asgets held for the primary purpose of
invesiment from which a commercial
rental is oblaned:

{ii) Vacant property awaiting elther
redevelopment or disposal;

{itl) Land and buildngs currently in the coursa of
devedopment bul nol yel completed and scoupied
for the proposed senvice.

Operational assets

Fixed assets held and occupied, used of consumed
by the Local Authority in the direct delivery of those
services for which it has either a statutory or
discrationary responshilify, or for the senvice ar
stralagic objectives of the Autharity,

Fast service cost or gain

For a defined benefit schame, the increase or
reduction in the present value of fhe scheme
lizbilities related to employee service in prior periods
#riging in the ourrent perod as a result of the
revision-of scherma benafis.
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Projected unit method

An acorued benefits vallabon methad in which the
schime liabilities make allowance for projecied
eammings. An acerued benefite valustion method 5 a
valuation method in which the séheme liabilities at
the valuabion date relate to-

1] thiz benefils for penaaness and
deferréd pansioners {le. tha
individials who have ceased o be
aclive membess but are entitled 1o
benefits paysble at a later dale) and
iheir dependanis, allowing whare
approprate for future increases. and

f) th accrued benefls for members n
sendioe on |he valuabon date.

Public works loans board

A Government body which provides loans 1o local
authofies for financing capial expenditure

Retirement benefiis

GD

Fu e S b W sunaw e

All forms of conssderation given by an employer in
exchange for sennicas rendered by employees thal
ara payable after the completion of employment.
Retirerment benefits do not include fermination
benefils payable as a result of sither;-

)] &h employers decison o lerminale an
employes's employment before the
narmal retrement date: or

] an empicyee s decision to accep
voluntary redundancy In exchange for
those penefits, because these are not
given in exchange for sarvices
rendiered by ampioyess

Revenue sxpenditure

Day-to-day expenditure on items (hat will generzlly
be consumead within hvelve manths from the date of
purchase {e.g. salares, senvice running costs,
consumable matenals and equipment, of the cost of
financing capilar assels)

Bcheme llabilities

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

The lrabilites of a defined bensfils scheme for
oulgoings due after the valusiion dale. Schame
liabilities measured using the projected unit methad
reflects the banefits that the employer s committed
1o provige for service up 1o the valuation date

Lizeful life

The penod over which the Authority will derive
benefits from the vse of & fixed 255ed
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DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MERSEYSIDE
WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY

Oplnion on the finenckal staterments

We have sudited the fnancaal statements of Merseyside Waste Disposal Authorily
for the year ended 31 March 2017 undar the Audit Commession Act 1888, The
fingncial staterments comprise the Autharity and Groug Comprehensive income
and Expenddure Stalemant, tha Authority and Group Balance Sheet, the Authanty
and Group Cash Flow Staterment and the Aulhority snd Group Maovemant in
Reserves Staternent and the related Nates  The financial reparting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable iaw and the CIPFFALASAAD
Code of Practice on Local Authanty Accounting in the United Kingdom 201817

This report Is made solely to the members of MEFEE]rEII:lEr Wﬂste Dizposal Aulhosly
n-accordance with Part |l of the Auds Camemisson Act 1558 and Sar ng ather
purpose, as set oud in paragraph 43 of Ihe E'haﬂamant of Resppnmmm of
Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commissian in March 2010

To the fullest axtan: permitted by law, wa do not sccept or assume responsibility to
anyone ofher than the Authority and the Authority's Members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have Tormed,

Respective responsibilities of the Treagurer to the Authority and auditor
Az explained mare fully in the Staternent of Responsibdiies, the Treasurer to the

Autharity is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the financal staternents. i accordancs wih proger prackices as setoil in

@D

SR PTUEF RV TE b BT A i

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

the CIPFA/LASAALC Code of Practice on Local Authorly Accounding bn the United
Kingdom, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, Our
responsibility is o audit and express an opnion on the finencial siaterments in
accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practces Board's
Ethical Stendards for Audiors.

Scope of the audit of the financlal statemonts

An audit mvolves obfaining svidence about the amourds and disciosures in the
financial statemernts sufficient to give reasonable assurance thal the financial
slatameants are free from matarial misstatemnent, whether caused by fraud or errar
This inchsdes an assessment of. whelher the accounting policies are appropriate o
the Authority and Group's crcumstances and have been consistently applied and
adegualely disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting esbmates
made by the Treasurer to the Autharity. and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In additson, we read all the financial and non-financial information in
the explanatory foreword fo identity material inconsistancies with the audited
financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financlal statementa
In our agendon the fnancisl statements:
*  ghe a tree and fair view of the financial position of Merseyside Wasle
Disposal Authority as at 31 March 2017 and of its expenditure and
income for the year then ended;

= give & true and fair view of the finandial posibon of the Group as al 34
Mareh 2T and of its expendiure and mcome for the year then ended;
and
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=  have been properly prepared . accondance with the CIEFALASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Autharity Accounting in the United Kingdom
201817

Opinion on other matters

In our sginion, (he nformation given in the explanatory foreword for the fnancial
year for which the financial slatements sre prepared is consistant with the Brancial
&lalaments.

Matters on which we report by exception

We repor to yau if

* in our opinica the annual nwunan::u slatemeant dnm e rnﬂm:t pormpliance

with 'Cinlie ing Good Governancy i Local G

gt Jyg G A i SPE i3 4l
-4 F] Y R Lt 1N 2UTES

T THITRET A mITHrA LI
*  wa issue a report in the public interest under secton B of e Audd
FifFIRE At 1OOE
» ‘we designate under sechon 11 of the Audil Commisson Act TA98 gy
fecommendation a5 one that requires the Authonty to consider it at a pubfic

meeting and 1o decida what action 1o take In response; or

* weexer:ﬁe;wﬂhmspamalw of the gudltar under the Audl

Exinn Gt B85

We have nothing 1o report n fhese respects

Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficioncy and effectiveneas in the use of resources

Respactive responsibilities of the Authority the auditor

mrTem FIovn s b ALY e

MRWA statement of Accounts 2016-17

The Authority Is responsible for putling in place proper arrangements fo secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in lts use of resources, 1o ensure proper
stewardship and govemance, and to review regularly the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements

'I'ILEII'E{EHI.HIHH ey Sartien B ool |k Avdit Commitesinn A J11lumw
oursalves that the Authority has made proper arrangements rnr SeCuring econamy,
efficiency and effectivenass In its use of resources. The Code of Audlt Practice
isued by he Audit Commission requines us 1o report 10 you pur canclusicn fetaling
10 proger arangemants, I'samg regard 1o relevant criteria specified by the A0dl

WTITHEBSLGEN = Ditniae

We report if significant matlers have come to cur attention which prevent us from
conciuding that the Authority bas pul In place proper arrangements for BETLNG
ecenomy, efficiency and eMectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required
to consader, nor have we considered. whather all aspects of the Authority's
arangemants for securing economy, efficlency and effectivensss in ifs usa of
resources are operating effiectively

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, afficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our sudit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice.
having regard to the guidance an the specified crteria, putlahnd oy e Auds

e o Lstnbar 004, as o whether the Authoeity has proper
arrangements for

*  gecuring financial resiencs, and
* challenging how i secures economy, eficiency and effectiveness.

The Audit Commission has determinad these two crilers a8 (Hoss necessary for s
to conslder under the Code of Audh Practice in salislying ourseives wheiher the
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Aurdharity put in place proper arangements for securing economy, efficency and 2097
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year anded 31 March 2017

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, Based an our
fsk assessment, we undertook such work 8% we considerad necassany 1o form a
view on whether, in all significant respects, the Authority put in place proper
arrangements o securs economy, efficiency and effecliveness in its use of
TESOLrDes

Copelugion

On the basis of our work, having regard 1o the guidance on the specified crifena
published by the Auwdit Commission m Ociober 2014, we are saisfied {sat, inoaif
significant respects, Merseyside Waste Disposal Authority pul in place proper
arrangements 1o secure ecanarmy, afficiency and efectivensss in 55 s af
resources for the year ended 31 March 2047,

Certificate

Wa certify thal we have completed the audid of the fnancial statements of
Metseysade Waste Dsposal Authorily In accordance with the reguirements of the
-’um'd Canmm.ulm Aot 1988 and Ihe Code of Auwdll Bactice ssud by oo Audt

ek Bellard
Engagement Lead
for and on behalf of Grant Thomion UK LLP, Appointed Auditar

Roval Liver Building, Liverpool L3 1P5
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